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Ladies and Gentlemen: FINANCIAL
Re : e-Kong Group Limited - SEC File No. 082-34653 zg&W@Dﬁ

Information Furnished pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) | { L

We, e-Kong Group Limited, submit the following documents, in duplicate, to the
Commission in order to maintain the Company’s exemption from Section 12(g) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”), pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) of the Act:

1. Announcement dated 28 October 2002 in respect of despatch of the circular in
respect of the proposed capital reorganization, proposed rights issue, whitewash
waiver, proposed bye-law amendments and general mandates to issue and to
repurchase new shares, made public and filed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK?”).

2. Announcement dated 21 November 2002 in respect of results of the special
general meeting, made public and filed pursuant to the SEHK Listing Rules.

3. Prospectus dated 27 November 2002 regarding the Rights Issue, made public,
filed or distributed pursuant to the SEHK Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(4) and (5), the enclosed materials shall not be deemed
“filed” with the Commission or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Act, and the furnishing of such materials shall not constitute an admission for any
purpose that the Company is subject to the Act.

e-KONG Group Limited

Rm 4101-5, 41/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone +852 2296 9700
www.e-kong.com Facsimile +852 2429 7116




Securities and Exchange Commission
Date :

Page 2

We would appreciate your acknowledging receipt of this letter and enclosures by
stamping the copy of this letter and returning it to us in the self-addressed envelope
enclosed for your convenience. Should you have any questions concerning the
foregoing, please contact the undersigned at (852) 3101 3047 or Mr. Wallace Yuen at
(852) 3101 3049.

Yours sincerely
For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited

. /
Lim Shyang Gue

Director

Enclosures




The Standard

29 October 2002 (Tuesday)

The Stock E\chanoe of Hong Kono Llnured rakes no. responslbrlrr) for the contents of this

anuomzcemem akes no ze,'ne:ematton as.to_its accuracy or completeness and expre. rsl\ disclaims -

any liability whatsoever Sor-any loss. howvoe\er armng from orin relmnce upon rhe whole orany
parr of rhe conrenrs of r/us announcemenz B '

{I mporateu’ in B‘ muda wrth lumred Irabrhlv)

DESPATCH OF THE CIRCULAR IN RESPECT OF THE
PROPOSED CAPITAL REORGANISA’JHON
PROPOSED. RIGHTS 1SSUE, )
WHITEWASH WAIVER
PROROSED BYE-LAW AMENDMENTS
AND.
GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND TO REPURCHASE NEW SHAR]ES

Fmanmal Advrser to the Company

‘ﬁsﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁmaa
Qua»r_n\ gap_ita_l_;L_i‘mitc\erl '

S i
Ca/mg for va wealth .

The circular containing, among other things. the details of the Capital Reorganisation, the
Rights Issuc and the. Whitewash- Waiver, together with a-form of proxy was despatched to the
Sharcholdurs and'to the holders of Share Op!lOnS (for information oaly) on 28 October 2002.

Thc SGM will be held at 10: 00 @:m. on. 21 November 7002 at. Room 3805 “Tower 11, Llppo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong."

Reference is m"rde to lhc announccmcnt of thc Companv dated 7 October 2002 (Lhc Announccmem ")
in respect of the Capital Reorganisation, the Righis Issue and the Whitéwash Waiver. Unless otherwise
dctrm.d capltallsed terms used hcrem shall have the same’ mcanmvs as. dcfmcd in the Announcament

s _Despatch of crrcular

' Thc Dnrector& 1nnounce that'a crrcular of’ thb Compdnv containing, among other thmﬂs dctmls of .

the Capital Rcorf’amsauon the R(ghts Issuc and the Whitewash Waiver,-a letter from the mdcpendent
_financial adviser dnd the notice’ of SGM. ‘togetherwith a: form- of _proxy was despatched to the
Shareholdcrs and to lhu holders of thu Sharc Opuons (for mformanon on]y) on 28 October 2002

e

] 'S(,M T

vThc SGM will be hcld at 1() OO a.m. on 21 Novcmbu 2002 1t Room 3805 Tower 1I, LlppO Centre N

89.Queensway, Hong Kono to- consrder and, if théught fit, approvc the rcsoluuons in respect of the.
o Capna { Reorganisation, the Rlohts Issug; lhe Whllewash Walvcr and the general manda[cs to issue
: cmd w0 repurchase \’;w Sharcs ’ el i
3 ‘Order of the Boar(_]'

e-Kong Group Limited’
Wang Poey Foon, Angela

" Company Secretary -

Hong Kong 28 October. 700’7

The Directors Jointly and severall) acceptfull responstbzllrv Jfor the accuracy of the, mfarmanon

contained herein and confirm, having inade all reasonable inquiries. that to the best of their
knowledoe opinions expressed in this unpouncement have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and there are no other facts not contained herein. the omission of which would make
any statement in the announcement misleading. : N '




The Standard 22 November 2002 (Friday)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the. contents-of this announcement, makes no representation as io its accuracy or compleieness and
.expressly disclaims any liability whaisoever for any-loss howsoever arising from or hg re[iancc_upo_n rhe whole or any part of the conténts of this announcement.

e- Kong Gmup lented
(lncnrparated in-Bermuda wl!h liniited. [lal)lll{)')
RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING
Financial Advnser to e- Kong Group lelted

EEARSREERAT
Quam Capltal lelted

N . . -

The Directors are pleased announce that resolutions in relation to the Rights Issuc and the Whitewash Waiver-were approved by the Independent
*. Shareholders at the SGM on 21 November 2002. In addition; the resolutions in reldtion to the Capital Reorganisation and the general mandates to issue and
ta repurchase New Shares werc also appraved by the Shareholders at the SGM. The Capital Reorganisation will become effective on 22 November 2002,

Rc(erence is made to the announcemen(s of the Company dated 7 Ocrober 2002 (the "Annoumement") and 28 October 2002. Unies< otherwise defined,
capitalised ternis used herein shall have the same meanings as defmed in the Announcemem

Results of the SGM S : . i -

The Directors are pleased to announce that resolunons in relauon to the Rlahm lssue and the Whitewash Waiver wére- approved by the'Independent Shareholders L

" at the SGM on 21 November 2002. The resolutions in respect of the Rights 1ssue and the Whitewash Waiver were taken by way of a poll. 6 voting papers were

’ . Despatch of Rights Issue Documents ..

. Commencement of dealings in New Shares on an.ex-rights basis

, Record Date

.-Pacallel trading in New Shares (in the form of bath exrs(mg and new share certificates) ends

receivéd from the Independent Shareholders either in person or by proxy. 5 voting papers representing in aggregate 263,600,910 Existing Shares were voting for
(representing approximately 90.57% of the votes cast).and.l voting paper representing in aggregate 27, 442 605 Existing Shares was voting against the Rights
Issue (representing approximately 9.43% of the votes cast). 5 voting papers representing in aggregate 263,600,910 Existing Shares. were received from the
Independent Shareholders voting for (representing approximately 90.57%- of the votes cast) and | voting paper. representing in aggregate 27,442,605 Existing
Shares was'received voting against the Whitewash Wavier (representing approximately 9.43% of the votes cast): In addition; the. resolutions in relation to the
Cabpital Reorgamsauon and the general mandates to issue and o repurchase New Sharcs were also approved by the Shareho\ders at the SGM The Capital
Reorganisation will become effective on 22 November 2002. .
vShareholdmg mterests of Interventuré and parties acting in concert with it . .
In the event that Tnterventure is called upon to subscribe for rts obhzanons under the Underwriting Agreemem in full, the ag regate-shareholding interests of
Interventure and parties acting in concert with it will increase from. -about 19, 34% to about 59. 67% (assuming no Share Options are duly €xcrcised before the
Record Date). The actual shareholdlnn interests of Interventure and parties acting m concert with it after the nghts Issue. will be announced by the Company.
-Timetable . - -
Set out below is the umexable for the Rights [ssue
Effective date of the Capual Reorganisation . Friday, 22 November 2002
‘Dealings in,New Shares commence iR ....9:30 a.m., Friday, 22 Novémber 2002
Free exchange of existing share certificates for new share certificates COMMENCES. t . .\ \.veevervreeeeee ey .,9 30 a. m., Fnday,. 22 November 2002
Temporary counter for trading in New Shares in board lots of 200 New Shares . N

(in the form of existing certificate) opens ; ..9:30 a.mr,.Friday. 22 November 2002 -
Exrstmg counter for trading in Existing Shares (in board lots of 4 000 Exmmg Shares) closes .. 9:30 a.m., Friday. 22 November 2002
Designated broker staits to stand in the market to provide matchmg SEEVICES et e T e e e Friday, 22 November 2002 -
Latest time of dealings in New-Shares on a cum-rights basis - 4:00 p.m., Friday, 22' November 2002
. Monday, 25 November 2002
4:00 p.m., Tuesday. 26 November 2002
..... Wednesday, 27 November 2002
.. Wednesday, 27 November 2002
Wednesday. 27 November 2002
Thursday, 28 November 2002
Monday, 2 December 2002
. 4:00 p.m:, Wedne_sday. 4 December 2002

"Latest time for lodging transfer of shares on a cum- rlghrs basrs
Register of members closes

Register 0f members feopens ...
First day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares
Latest time for splitting nil-paid Rights Shares

Exrsung counter for trading in New Shares in board fots of 10, 000 New Shares

-(in-the form of new share certificate) reopens 9:30 a.m.. Friday, 6 December 2002
Parallel trading in' New Shares (in the form of both existing and new share cert\Fcates) begrns ......................... 9:30 a.m., Friday, 6 December 2002
Last day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares Monday, 9 December 2002
Latest time for payment and acceptance of Rights Issue . 4:00 p.m., Friday, 13 Decembet 2002
Latest time for the Righls Tssue to become unconditional 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, 17 December 2002
Announcement of resuits of the Rights Issue appears. on newspaper: Wednesday -18 December 2002
Despa[ch of refund cheques in respect of unsuccessful’ _or

applications for excess Rights Shares on or before .\+0
Despatch of certificates for fully-paid Rights Shares on or before
Dealings in-fully- pard Rights Shares commence .
Temporary counter for trading in New’ Shares in "board: Tots of 200-New Shares

{in the form of existing cemflcate) clo:es :

. Thursday, 19 December 2002
Thursday, 19 December 2002
9:30 a.m., Monday 23 December 2002

4:00 p.m., Tuesday 31 Deccmber 2002
:00 p.m., Tuésday, 31 December 2002
Free exchange of existing share certificates for new share certificates 2T Monday, .6 January 2003
Designated broker ceases to stand in the market to provlde‘matchrng SEIVICES L. .'vvneit e close of business on Wednesday, 8 January 2003 -

By Order of the Board
e-Kong Group-Limited
Wang Poey Foon, Angela

Campanv Secretary -

Hong Kong, 21 Novcmber 2002 -

The Directors jointly’and severally acceps full responslbrl(!yfar the accuracy of the mformunan contained herein and confirm, having made alil reasonable znqumzs, that to the
best of their knowledge, opinions expressed in this announcement hdve been arrived ar after due and careful consideration and there are no other facts not contained herein, the
amu.rmn of whick would make any in the misleadi




THIS PROSPECTUS IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt about any aspect of this prospectus or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker or other
registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser,

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in e-Kong Group Limited (“the Company™). you should at once hand this prospectus to
the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to
the purchaser or transferee.

A copy of this prospectus. together with copies of the provisional allotment letter and the form of application for excess Rights Shares (as
defined herein), has been registered by the Companies Registry in Hong Kong as required by section 342C of the Companies Ordinance of
Hong Kong. A copy of this prospectus, together with copies of the provisional allotment letter and the form of application for excess
Rights Shares has been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda for filing in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Companies Registry in Hong Kong, the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong take no responsibility as to the contents of any of these documents.

Subject to the granting of listings of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms on the Stock
Exchange (as defined herein). as well as compliance with the stock admission requirements of HKSCC (as defined herein), the Rights
Shares in their nil-paid and fully-paid forms will be accepted as eligible securities by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and settlement in
CCASS (as defined herein) with effect from the commencement dates of dealings on the Stock Exchange or such other dates as determined
by HKSCC. Settlement of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading day is required to take place in CCASS
on the second trading day thereafter. All activities under CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational
Procedures in effect from time to time.

No provisional allotment letters or forms of application for excess Rights Shares are being sent to Overseas Shareholders (as defined
herein). No action (including registration or filing under any applicable legislation of any territory or jurisdiction outside Hong Kong and
Bermuda) has been taken to permit the offering of the Rights Shares. or distribution of this prospectus or the provisional allotment letter
or form of application for excess Rights Shares, in any territory or jurisdiction other than Hong Kong. Accordingly. no person receiving
this prospectus, provisional allotment letter or form of application for excess Rights Shares in any territory or jurisdiction other than Hong
Kong may treat it as an offer of or invitation to apply for the Rights Shares.

The Stock Exchange and HKSCC take no responsibility for the contents of this prospectus, the attached provisional allotment letter and
the form of application for excess Rights Shares, make no representation as to their accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of these documents.

€-K: NG

e-Kong Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

RIGHTS ISSUE

IN THE PROPORTION OF ONE RIGHTS SHARE
FOR EVERY NEW SHARE HELD

Financial Adviser to e-Kong Group Limited

. EERREZBRESRAT
" Quam Capital Limited

A Subsidiary of Quam Limited

Caring for your wealih

The latest time for acceptance of and payment for the Rights Shares is 4:00 p.m. on 13 December 2002. The procedure for acceptance and
transfer is set out on pages 20 to 21 of this prospectus.

It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement (as defined herein) in respect of the Rights Issue (as defined herein) contains
provisions entitling the Underwriter (as defined herein), by notice in writing, to terminate its obligations if prior to 4:30 p.m. on
the second business day after the Latest Acceptance Date (as defined herein):

(a) any of the representations and warranties made by the Company set out in the Underwriting Agreement was untrue or
incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed to be made or would, if repeated by reference to facts and
circumstances in existence at any time prior to 4:30 p.m. on the second business day after the Latest Acceptance Date, be
untrue or incorrect in any material respect;

(b) that the Company is otherwise materially in breach of any of its obligations under the Underwriting Agreement;

(c) any of the conditions to which the ohligations of the Underwriter under the Underwritling Agreement are subject are not
fulfilled or are likely to be not fulfilled by the deadlines provided in the Underwriting Agreement for any reason whatsoever;
or

(d) that there shall have occurred any change in national or international, financial, monetary, economic or political conditions

(including fluctuations in exchange rates) or there shall have occurred abnormal market conditions or the outbreak of
conflict or hostilities or any other event which, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, is or is likely to be materially
prejudicial to the business or financial position of the Group taken as a whole or the Rights Issue.

New Shares (as defined herein) have been dealt with on an ex-rights basis from 25 November 2002. Dealings in the Rights Shares in
the nil-paid form will take place from 2 December 2002 to 9 December 2002 (both days inclusive). If prior to 4:30 p.m. ou 17
December 2002, the conditions of the Rights Issue are not fulfilled or the Underwriting Agreement is terminated by the Underwriter,
the Rights Issue will not proceed.

Any person contemplating buying or selling New Shares from now to 17 December 2002 which all such conditions are fulfilled
(which is expected to be 17 December 2002), and contemplating buying or selling nil-paid Rights Shares between 2 December 2002
and 9 December 2002 (both days inclusive), bears the risk that the Rights Issue may not become unconditional and may not
proceed.

Investors may wish to obtain professional advice regarding dealings in New Shares or nil-paid Rights Shares during these periods.

27 November 2002
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the Takeovers Code and
the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Group. The Directors

jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in

this prospectus (other than that relating to the Underwriter) and confirm, having made all
reasonable enquires, that to the best of their knowledge, opinions expressed in this prospectus
have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are no other facts not
contained in this prospectus, the omission of which would make any statement contained
herein misleading.

The directors of the Underwriter jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information relating to the Underwriter contained in this prospectus and
confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge, opinions
expressed in this prospectus have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there
are no other facts relating to the Underwriter not contained in this prospectus, the omission of
which would make statement contained herein misleading.




DEFINITIONS

In this prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have
the following meanings:

“Announcement” the Company’s announcement dated 7 October 2002
relating to, inter alia, the Capital Reorganisation, the
Rights Issue, the Whitewash Waiver and general
mandates to issue and to repurchase New Shares

“associate(s)” having the same meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules

“Board” the board of Directors

“Capital Reduction” the cancellation of HK$0.0195 of the paid-up capital
on each issued Existing Share

“Capital Reorganisation” the reorganisation of the capital of the Company
consisting of the Capital Reduction, the Share
Consolidation, the Share Premium Cancellation and
the Share Subdivision, which became effective on 22
November 2002

“CCASS” the Central Clearing and Settlement System
established and operated by HKSCC

“Companies Act” the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
“Company” e-Kong Group Limited, a company incorporated in

Bermuda on 21 July 1994 with limited liability and
the ordinary shares of which are listed on the Stock

Exchange
“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company
“Excluded Rights Shares” 45,525,782 Rights Shares in aggregate that Mr.

Siemens, Mr. Hicks and Mr. Saran are entitled to
subscribe for pursuant to the terms of the Rights Issue
in their capacity as Qualifying Shareholders

“Executive” the Executive Director of the Corporate Finance
Division of the SFC or any delegate of the Executive
Director

“Existing Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of HK$0.02 each in the share capital

of the Company immediately prior to the Capital
Reorganisation which became effective on 22
November 2002

2




DEFINITIONS

“Groupn
“HKSCC”
“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Independent Director”

“Independent Shareholders™

1

“Interventure’” or “Underwriter’

s

“Latest Acceptance Date

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mr. Hicks”

“Mr. Saran”

the Company and its subsidiaries
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
Hong Kong dollar(s)

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

Mr. Matthew Brian Rosenberg, the Director who has
been appointed to advise the Independent Shareholders
in relation to the Rights Issue and the Whitewash
Waiver

Shareholders other than Interventure, its associates
and parties acting in concert with it (including Mr.
Siemens, Mr. Hicks and Mr. Saran)

Interventure Group Limited, an investment holding
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
which is beneficially owned as to /s by Mr. Siemens,
'/3 by Mr. Hicks and /3 by Mr. Saran

4:00 p.m. on 13 December 2002, being the latest date
on which provisional allotments of Rights Shares in
nil-paid form may be validly accepted

22 November 2002, being the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this prospectus for ascertaining
certain information contained in this prospectus

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

Mr. William Bruce Hicks, a non-executive Director
who together with a company controlled by him is
the beneficial owner of 10,501,832 New Shares,
representing about 4.46% of the issued share capital
of the Company

Mr. Kuldeep Saran, Deputy Chairman of the Company
who together with a company controlled by him is
the beneficial owner of 9,347,475 New Shares,
representing about 3.97% of the issued share capital
of the Company




DEFINITIONS

“Mr. Siemens”

“New Share(s)”

“Overseas Shareholder(s)”

“Qualifying Shareholder(s)”

“Record Date”

“Rights Issue”

“Rights Issue Documents”
“Rights Share(s)”

“SDI Ordinance”

“SFC”

“SGM”

“Share Consolidation”

Mr. Richard John Siemens, the Chairman of the
Company who together with companies controlled by
him is the beneficial owner of 25,676,475 New Shares,
representing about 10.91% of the issued share capital
of the Company

new ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company immediately after the Capital
Reorganisation

the Shareholder(s) whose name(s) appear(s) on the
register of members of the Company on the Record
Date and whose registered address(es) on that date
is/are outside Hong Kong

the Shareholder(s), other than the Overseas
Shareholder(s), whose name(s) appear(s) on the
register of members of the Company on the Record
Date

27 November 2002

the rights issue of one Rights Share for every New
Share held by a Shareholder on the Record Date

this prospectus, the provisional allotment letter and
the form of application for excess Rights Shares

New Share(s) to be issued by the Company in relation
to the Rights Issue

the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Crdinance
(Chapter 396 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Securities and Futures Commission

the special general meeting of the Company held on
21 November 2002 for the purpose of considering,
inter alia, the Capital Reorganisation, the Rights Issue,
the Whitewash Waiver and general mandates to issue
and to repurchase New Shares

the consolidation of every 20 issued shares of
HK$0.0005 each in the capital of the Company arising
from the Capital Reduction into one New Share



DEFINITIONS

“Share Options”

?

“Share Premium Cancellation’

“Share Subdivision”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“Subscription Price”

“Takeovers Code”

“Underwriting Agreement”

“Whitewash Waiver”

“%”

share options granted pursuant to the Company’s share
option scheme adopted on 25 October 1999 (as
amended)

the cancellation of the amount of HK$1,196,238,291
standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company as at the date of the Announcement

the subdivision of every authorised but unissued
Existing Share into two New Shares

holder(s) for the time being of the ordinary share(s)
of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
subscription price of HK$0.12 per Rights Share
The Code on Takeovers and Mergers

the underwriting agreement dated 4 October 2002 and
entered into between the Company and Interventure
in relation to the Rights Issue

a waiver from the Executive pursuant to Note 1 to
Notes on Dispensations from Rule 26 of the Takeovers
Code in respect of the obligations of Interventure and
parties acting in concert with it to make a mandatory
general offer for all the securities of the Company
not already owned by Interventure and parties acting
in concert with it which would otherwise arise as a
result of Interventure subscribing for the Rights Shares
under the terms of the Underwriting Agreement and
parties acting in concert with Interventure taking up
their Rights Shares entitlement together with any
excess Rights Shares that all or any of them may
apply for and are accepted by the Company

per cent.



SUMMARY OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

full text of this prospectus:

Basis of the Rights Issue:

Number of New Shares in issue:

Outstanding Share Options granted:

Number of Rights Shares:

Subscription price:

Basis of entitlement:

Excess Rights Shares application:

Amount to be raised by
“the Rights Issue:

The following information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the

One Rights Share for every New Share (equivalent to
20 Existing Shares) held on the Record Date

235,447,100 New Shares as at the Latest Practicable
Date

Share Options entitling the holders thereof (excluding
Mr. Siemens) to subscribe for 5,082,925 New Shares

Not less than 235,447,100 Rights Shares and not more
than 240,530,025 Rights Shares

HK$0.12 per Rights Share, payable in full upon valid
acceptance

Rights Issue will be allotted in the proportion of one
Rights Share for every New Share held by the
Qualifying Shareholders on the Record Date. No
provisional allotment of Rights Shares will be made
to Overseas Shareholders

Qualifying Shareholders will have the right to apply
for Rights Shares in excess of their provisional
allotments

(i) Approximately HK$28.25 million before
expenses, and net proceeds of approximately
HK$25.75 million (assuming that no Share
Options are exercised before the Record Date)

(ii) Approximately HK$28.86 million before
expenses and net proceeds of approximately
HK$26.36 million (assuming that all Share
Options excluding those held by Mr. Siemens
are exercised before the Record Date)

The estimated expenses of approximately HK$2.50
million are expenses payable to advisers, auditors and
printer relating to the Rights Issue.




TERMINATION OF THE UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement contains provisions granting
Interventure the right, by notice in writing to the Company, to terminate its obligations
thereunder on the occurrence of certain events.

Interventure may terminate its commitment under the Underwriting Agreement if
prior to 4:30 p.m. on the second business day after the Latest Acceptance Date:

(2)

(b)

(©)

(@)

any of the representations and warranties made by the Company set out in
the Underwriting Agreement was untrue or incorrect in any material respect
when made or deemed to be made or would, if repeated by reference to facts
and circumstances in existence at any time prior to 4:30 p.m. on the second
business day after the Latest Acceptance Date, be untrue or imcorrect in ary
material respect;

that the Company is otherwise materially in breach of amy of its obligations
under the Underwriting Agreement;

any of the conditions to which the obligations of the Underwriter under the
Underwriting Agreement are subject are not fulfilled or are likely to be not
fulfilied by the deadlines provided in the Underwriting Agreement for any
reason whatsoever; or

that there shall have occurred amy change in national or internatiomal,
financial, monetary, economic or political conditions (including fluctuations
in exchange rates) or there shall have occurred abnormal market conditions
or the outbreak of conflict or hostilities or any other event which, in the
reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, is or is likely to be materially
prejudicial to the business or financial position of the Group taken as a
whole or the Rights Issue.

If the Underwriter terminates the Underwriting Agreement, the Rights Issue wiil

not proceed.



EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Register of members closes ............... ... ..., Wednesday, 27 November 2002
Record Date . ... . e Wednesday, 27 November 2002
Register of members reopens .............. ... ... Thursday, 28 November 2002
First day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares . ................ Monday, 2 December 2002

Latest time for splitting nil-paid Rights Shares ....4:00 p.m., Wednesday, 4 December 2002

Existing counter for trading in New Shares
in board lots of 10,000 New Shares
(in the form of new share certificate) reopens ....... 9:30 a.m., Friday, 6 December 2002

Parallel trading in New Shares
(in the form of both existing and
new share certificates) begins ..................... 9:30 a.m., Friday, 6 December 2002

Last day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares ................. Monday, 9 December 2002

Latest time for payment and
acceptance of Rights Issue ................ ... ... 4:00 p.m., Friday, 13 December 2002

Latest time for the Rights Issue to
become unconditional ........ ... .. ... L 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, 17 December 2002

Announcement of results of
the Rights Issue appears on newspapers ................ Wednesday, 18 December 2002

Despatch of refund cheques in respect of
unsuccessful or partially unsuccessful
applications for excess Rights Shares
onorbefore ....... ... ... .. Thursday, 19 December 2002

Despatch of certificates for
fully-paid Rights Shares on or before .................... Thursday, 19 December 2002

Dealings in fully-paid Rights Shares commence ..... 9:30 a.m., Monday, 23 December 2002

Temporary counter for trading in
New Shares in board lots of
200 New Shares (in the form of
existing certificate) closes ..................... 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, 31 December 2002




EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Parallel trading in New Shares
(in the form of both existing and
new share certificates) ends ................... 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, 31 December 2002

Free exchange of existing share certificates for
new share certificates ends ............ .. . .. Monday, 6 January 2003

Designated broker ceases to stand in the
market to provide matching services .... close of business on Wednesday, 8§ January 2003
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e-Kong Gr@a@p Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Richard John Siemens (Chairman)
Mr. Kuldeep Saran (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa

Mzr. Lim Shyang Guey

Non-executive Director:
Mr. William Bruce Hicks

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mzr. Shane Frederick Weir
Mr. Matthew Brian Rosenberg

Registered Office:
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Principal place of business.
Room 4101-5

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

27 November 2002

To the Qualifving Shareholders and to the Overseas Shareholders
(for information purpose only)

Dear Sir or Madam,
RIGHTS ISSUE

IN THE PROPORTION OF ONE RIGHTS SHARE FOR
EVERY NEW SHARE HELD

INTRODUCTION

On 7 October 2002, the Board announced that the Company proposed to effect the
Capital Reorganisation and the Rights Issue. The Capital Reorganisation was proposed to be
implemented by means of the Capital Reduction, the Share Consolidation, the Share Premium
Cancellation and the Share Subdivision. The Company also proposed to raise approximately
HK$28.25 million before expenses by issuing not less than 235,447,100 Rights Shares at a
price of HK$0.12 per Rights Share, by way of the Rights Issue. The Company will provisionally
allot one Rights Share for every New Share held by Qualifying Shareholders on the Record
Date. The Rights Issue is not available to Overseas Shareholders.

On 28 October 2002, a circular containing information in relation to, among other
things, details of the Rights Issue, the recommendation of the Independent Director and the
advice of the independent financial adviser in respect of the Rights Issue, the Whitewash
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Waiver and the general mandates to issue and to repurchase New Shares and the notice of the
SGM was depatched to the Shareholders and to the holders of Share Options, for information
purpose only. A copy of the circular is available for inspection as mentioned in the section
headed “Documents available for inspection” in Appendix II to this prospectus.

The Capital Reorganisation was approved at the SGM and became effective on 22
November 2002. The Rights Issue was also approved by the Independent Shareholders at the
SGM.

The purpose of this prospectus is to give you further information on, among other

things, the Rights Issue, the information on dealing in, transfer and acceptance of the Rights
Shares, and certain financial and other information of the Group.

RIGHTS ISSUE
Issue statistics

Basis of the Rights Issue: One Rights Share for every New Share held on the
Record Date

Number of New Shares in issue: 235,447,100 New Shares as at the Latest Practicable
Date
Outstanding Share Options granted: Share Options entitling the holders thereof (excluding

Mr. Siemens) to subscribe for 5,082,925 New Shares

Number of Rights Shares: Not less than 235,447,100 Rights Shares and not more
than 240,530,025 Rights Shares

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were 5,082,925 outstanding Share Options
entitling the holders thereof (excluding Mr. Siemens) to subscribe for 5,082,925 New Shares.
If all of the subscription rights attaching to such Share Options (excluding the Share Options
held by Mr. Siemens) are exercised and shares are issued and allotted pursuant to such
exercise on or before the Record Date, the number of New Shares will increase by 5,082,925
and the number of Rights Shares which may be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue will
increase from 235,447,100 to 240,530,025.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, there were no other outstanding
securities or instruments capable of conversion to shares of the Company. Assuming that no
Share Options are exercised before the Record Date, the Company expects to raise
approximately HK$28.25 million before expenses through the Rights Issue and the estimated
net proceed after deducting expenses are approximately HK$25.75 million.

The basis of the Rights Issue is 6ne Rights Share for every New Share held on the
Record Date, hence no fraction of shares will be resulted from the Rights Issue.
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Qualifying Shareholders

The Company will send the Rights [ssue Documents to the Qualifying Shareholders
only.

To qualify for the Rights Issue, a Shareholder must:

- be registered as a member of the Company at the close of business on the Record
Date; and

- have an address in Hong Kong which appears on the register of members of the
Company on Record Date.

In order to be registered as a member on the Record Date, Shareholders must lodge any
transfer of shares (with the relevant share certificates) with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong by 4:00 p.m. on 26 November 2002.

The Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong is:
Secretaries Limited
5th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Closure of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed on 27 November 2002. No
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered on that day.

Subscription Price

The Subscription Price is HK$0.12 per Rights Share, payable in full when a Qualifying
Shareholder accepts his/her provisional allotment under the Rights Issue or applies for excess
Rights Shares or when a transferee of nil-paid Rights Shares subscribes for the Rights Shares.

The Subscription Price represents:

(i)  a discount of about 40% to the adjusted closing price of about HK$0.20 per New
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 4 October 2002, being the last trading
day prior to the date of the Announcement;

(i) a discount of about 40% to the adjusted average closing price of about HK$0.20

per New Share for the 10 trading days up to and including 4 October 2002, being
the last trading day prior to the date of the Announcement;
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(iii) a discount of about 25% to the theoretical ex-rights price of about HKS$0.16 per
New Share based on the adjusted closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 4 October 2002, being the last trading day prior to the date of the
Announcement;

(iv) a discount of about 40% to the adjusted closing price of about HK$0.20 per New
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 25 October 2002, being the latest
practicable date prior to the printing of the Company’s Rights [ssue circular dated
28 October 2002;

(v) adiscount of about 40% to the adjusted average closing price of about HK$0.20
per New Share for the 10 trading days immediately prior to 25 October 2002,
being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of the Company’s Rights
Issue circular dated 28 October 2002;

(vi) a discount of about 25% to the theoretical ex-rights price of about HK$0.16 per
New Share based on the adjusted closing price of HK$0.20 per New Share on 25
October 2002, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of the
Company’s Rights Issue circular dated 28 October 2002,

(vii) a premium of about 3.45% to the closing price of HK$0.116 per New Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange as at the Latest Practicable Date;

(viii) a discount of about 37.50% to the average closing price of about HK$0.192 per
New Share for the 10 trading days immediately prior to the Latest Practicable
Date; and

(ix) a premium of about 1.69% to the theoretical ex-rights price of HK$0.118 per
New Share based on the closing price of HK$0.116 per New Share as at the
Latest Practicable Date.

The Subscription Price was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and Interventure. The Directors consider the Subscription Price to be fair and
reasonable and to be in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Status of the Rights Shares
The Rights Shares, when allotted and fully-paid, will rank pari passu in all respects
with the New Shares then in issue. Holders of fully-paid Rights Shares will be entitled to

receive all future dividends and distributions which are declared, made or paid after the date
of allotment of the Rights Shares.
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Rights of Overseas Shareholders

The Rights Issue Documents will not be registered under the securities legislation of
any jurisdiction other than Hong Kong and Bermuda. Having reviewed the register of members,
the Directors are of the view that the offer of the Rights Shares to the Overseas Shareholders
would or might, in the absence of compliance with registration or other special formalities in
other jurisdictions, be unlawful or impracticable. As such, the Company will send this
prospectus to the Overseas Shareholders for their information only but no provisional allotment
of the Rights Shares to the Overseas Shareholders will be made and the Company will not
send the provisional allotment letter or the form of application for excess Rights Shares to the
Overseas Shareholders.

If a premium (net of expenses) can be obtained, the Company will sell the provisional
allotment of Rights Shares which would otherwise have been allotted to the Overseas
Shareholders once dealings in the nil-paid Rights Shares commence. The proceeds of sale of
individual Overseas Shareholders’ nil-paid Rights Shares, after deducting expenses, of HK$100
or more will be paid to the Overseas Shareholders in Hong Kong dollars. The Company will
retain individual amount of less than HK$100 for its own benefit.

Certificates of the Rights Shares

Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions of the Rights Issue, certificates for all fully-
paid Rights Shares are expected to be posted to the subscribers who have been allotted the
relevant Rights Shares by 19 December 2002 at their own risk.
Conditions of the Rights Issue

The Rights Issue is conditional upon, inter alia, the following conditions being fulfilled:

(a)  the Company despatching the circular relating to, among other things, the Capital
Reorganisation, the Rights Issue and the Whitewash Waiver to the Shareholders;

(b) the passing by the Shareholders at the SGM of special resolution to approve the
Capital Reorganisation;

(c)  the passing by the Independent Shareholders at the SGM of ordinary resolutions
to approve the Rights Issue and the Whitewash Waiver;

(d)  the Capital Reorganisation being implemented;
(e) the Executive granting to Interventure and parties acting in concert with it a
waiver from making a general offer for the securities of the Company not already

owned by Interventure and parties acting in concert with it and the satisfaction of
any condition attached to the waiver by the Executive;
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the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange having granted (subject to allotment)
and not revoked the listing of and permission to deal in the Rights Shares in nil-
paid and fully-paid forms;

the registration of the Rights Issue Documents with the Companies Registry in
Hong Kong; and

the filing of the Rights Issue Documents with the Registrar of Companies in

Bermuda.

The above conditions of the Rights Issue cannot be waived by the Company and/or the
Underwriter under the terms of the Underwriting Agreement. If any of the conditions of the
Rights Issue is not fulfilled on or around the date of issue of the Rights Issue Documents as
may be required by the various regulatory authorities on 27 November 2002 (or such later
date as the Underwriter and the Company shall agree, provided such later date being not later
than 5:00 p.m. on 31 December 2002), neither the Underwriter nor the Company shall have
any rights nor be subjected to any obligations arising from the Underwriting Agreement to
accept their entitlement under the Rights Issue and the Rights Issue will lapse.

As at the date of this prospectus, except condition (f), all of the above conditions are
fulfilled.

Reasons for the Rights Issue and the use of proceeds

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in provision of telecommunication services. The Group’s flagship IDD and
telecommunication business is operated by ZONE Group Inc. (“ZONE”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. ZONE currently has operations in the United States, Hong Kong
and Singapore.

As stated in the Company’s year 2002 interim report, the Directors are of the opinion
that the general environment of the countries in which the Group operates is unlikely to
improve in the second half of 2002. However, the Group’s key operating subsidiaries have
proven to have a competitive edge to grow its market share whilst continuing to improve their
overall operating efficiencies. ZONE Hong Kong and Singapore are expected to contribute
positively towards the Group’s cashflow in the second half of 2002,

The estimated net proceeds of the Rights Issue after deducting expenses (assuming no
outstanding Share Options are exercised before the Record Date) are approximately HK$25.75
million. The Directors intend to apply the net proceeds as general working capital for the
Group’s existing telecommunication business. About 80% of the net proceeds will be used for
working capital for ZONE in the United States to fund the development of the business until
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the revenues exceed the ongoing recurring costs. The remaining balance will be used for sales
and marketing activities of ZONE in Hong Kong and Singapore. As at the Latest Practicable
Date, the Group did not have any plans regarding significant capital expenditure or acquisition.

The Directors are of the opinion that the United States, being the largest international
direct dial and domestic long distance market in the world, offers opportunities for growth as
there is a high demand from both business and domestic markets for cost effective and
efficient telecommunication services providers. As stated in the Company’s year 2002 interim
report, the Group will continue to invest in growing the revenue of the ZONE business in the
United States, particularly in the enterprises and corporate markets. The Directors consider
that the net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue together with the Group’s internal financial
resources and available borrowing facilities will enable the Group to benefit from the full
potential of its existing telecommunication business.

The Directors believe that it is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole to enlarge the capital base of the Company through the Rights Issue, since the
enlarged capital base will support the continuing development of the Group’s existing business
activities. The Rights Issue will allow the Shareholders to participate in the growth of the
Group.

Free exchange of New Shares certificates and parallel trading arrangements

The Capital Reorganisation became effective on 22 November 2002. Shareholders may
on or before 6 January 2003 submit certificates for the Existing Shares to the Company’s
branch share registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Sth Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for exchange, at the expense of the Company, for
certificates for the New Shares. Thereafter, certificates for the Existing Shares will be accepted
for exchange only on payment of a fee of HK$2.50 (or such higher amount as may from time
to time be allowed by the Stock Exchange) for each new certificate issued for the New Shares.
Certificates for Existing Shares will only be valid for delivery and settlement in respect of
dealing for the period up to 31 December 2002. Thereafter, they will not be accepted for
dealing purpose. Nevertheless, certificates for the Existing Shares will continue to be good
evidence of legal title and may be exchanged for certificates for the New Shares at any time.

On 22 November 2002, the existing counter for trading in the Existing Shares in board
lots of 4,000 Existing Shares was temporarily closed. A temporary counter will be established
for trading in the New Shares in board lots of 200 New Shares. Certificates for Existing
Shares may only be traded at this temporary counter.

With effect from 6 December 2002, the existing counter for trading in Existing Shares
will be reopened for trading in the New Shares in board lots of 10,000 New Shares.

From 6 December 2002 to 31 December 2002, both days inclusive, there will be parallel
trading at the above two counters.
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The temporary counter for trading in New Shares in board lots of 200 New Shares will
be removed after the close of trading on 31 December 2002. Thereafter, trading will be in
New Shares only and the existing share certificates for Existing Shares will cease to be
marketable and will not be acceptable for dealing purpose. However, such share certificates
will remain effective as documents_ of title.

Arrangement for the matching services of odd lots shares

In order to alleviate the difficulties arising from the existence of odd lots of New
Shares, Quam Securities Company Limited has agreed to stand in the market to provide
matching services for the odd lots of New Shares on a best effort basis, during the period from
22 November 2002 to 8 January 2003, both days inclusive. Shareholders who wish to take
advantage of this matching facility either to dispose of their odd lots of New Shares or top up
to board Jots of 10,000 New Shares may contact Mr. Paul Leung, Quam Securities Company
Limited at Room 3308, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong
Kong at telephone number 2847-2239 during office hours.

UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENTS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

Underwriting Agreement

Date: 4 October 2002
Underwriter: Interventure Group Limited
Number of Shares underwritten: Not less than 189,921,318 Rights Shares and not more

than 195,004,243 Rights Shares (Note)

Commission: ' 2% of the total issue price of the Rights Shares
underwritten by the Underwriter

The maximum commission to be received by the
Underwriter will be approximately HK$468,010.

Note: These figures exclude 45,525,782 Rights Shares provisionally allotted to Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr.

Hicks in respect of their respective beneficial shareholdings in the Company.

Interventure is an investment holding company beneficially owned as to '/s by Mr.
Siemens, !/5 by Mr. Saran and /3 by Mr. Hicks whose ordinary course of business does not
include underwriting of securities. Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr. Hicks and companies
controlled by them are beneficially interested in 45,525,782 New Shares (equivalent to
910,515,642 Existing Shares) in aggregate, representing about 19.34% of the Company’s
existing share capital.

The Underwriting Agreement is a connected transaction which is exempted from
Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14.24(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Errevocable undertakings from Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr. Hicks

Mr. Siemens has undertaken that the 513,529,500 Existing Shares (equivalent to
25,676,475 New Shares) beneficially owned by companies controlled by him will remain
registered in their respective names from the date of the Announcement up to the Record
Date. Mr. Siemens has also irrevocably undertaken to subscribe or procure subscribers for
their provisional entitlements in full, amounting to 25,676,475 Rights Shares.

Mr. Hicks has undertaken that the 210,036,642 Existing Shares (equivalent to 10,501,832
New Shares) beneficially owned by him and a company controlled by him will remain registered
in their respective names from the date of the Announcement to the Record Date. Mr. Hicks
has also irrevocably undertaken to subscribe or procure subscribers for their provisional
entitlements in full, amounting to 10,501,832 Rights Shares.

Mr. Saran has undertaken that the 186,949,500 Existing Shares (equivalent to 9,347,475
New Shares) beneficially owned by him and a company controlled by him will remain registered
in their respective names from the date of the Announcement to the Record Date. Mr. Saran
has also irrevocably undertaken to subscribe or procure subscribers for their provisional
entitlements in full, amounting to 9,347,475 Rights Shares.

Each of Mr. Siemens, Mr. Hicks and Mr. Saran has not yet decided whether he will or
will not apply for excess Rights Shares.

Termination of the Underwriting Agreememnt

It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement contains provisions granting
Interventure the right, by notice in writing, to terminate its obligations thereunder on the
occurrence of certain events.

Interventure may terminate its commitment under the Underwriting Agreement if prior
to 4:30 p.m. on the second business day after the Latest Acceptance Date:

(a)  any of the representations and warranties made by the Company set out in the
Underwriting Agreement was untrue or incorrect in any material respect when
made or deemed to be made or would, if repeated by reference to facts and
circumstances in existence at any time prior to 4:30 p.m. on the second business
day after the Latest Acceptance Date, be untrue or incorrect in any material
respect;

(b) that the Company is otherwise materially in breach of any of its obligations under
the Underwriting Agreement;
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any of the conditions to which the obligations of the Underwriter under the

Underwriting Agreement are subject are not fulfilled or are likely to be not

fulfilled by the deadlines provided in the Underwriting Agreement for any reason
whatsoever; or

that there shall have occurred any change in national or international, financial,
monetary, economic or political conditions (including fluctuations in exchange
rates) or there shall have occurred abnormal market conditions or the outbreak of
conflict or hostilities or any other event which, in the reasonable opinion of the
Underwriter, is or is likely to be materially prejudicial to the business or financial
position of the Group taken as a whole or the Rights Issue.

CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Set out below are tabies showing the changes in shareholding structure as at the Latest
Practicable Date and immediately following the completion of the Rights Issue:

After the Rights Issue After the Rights Issue
(Assuming that all (Assuming that all Share
Share Options except Options except Share
Share Options held by After the Rights Issue Options are held by
Mr. Siemens are (Assuming that no Mr. Siemens are
exercised before the Share Options are exercised before the
Record Date, and the exercised before the Record Date, and the
Underwriter is not Record Date, and the Underwriter is required

required to take up any  Underwriter is required to take up all Rights
Rights Shares pursuant to take up all Rights Shares pursuant to the

As at the Latest to the Underwriting Shares pursuant to the Underwriting
Practicable Date Agreement) Underwriting Agreement) Agreement)
Number of % Number of % Number of G Number of %
New Shares New Shares New Shares New Shares

Underwriter - - - - 189.921,318 40.33 195.004,243 40.54
Mr. Siemens 25,676,475 10.91 51,352,950 10.67 51.352,950 1091 51,352,950 10.67
Mr. Hicks 10,501,832 4.46 21,003,664 4.37 21,003.664 4.46 21,003,664 4.37
Mr. Saran 9.347,475 3.97 18,694,950 3.89 18.694.950 3.97 18,694,950 3.89
Subtotal 45,525,782 19.34 91,051,564 18.93 280,972,882 59.67 286.055,807 59.46
Other Directors 5,000 0.00 4.891.850 1.02 5.000 0.00 2,445,925 0.51
Public Shareholders 186,916,318 80.66 385,116.636 80.05 189,916,318 40.33 192,558,318 40.03
Total 235,447,100 100.00 481.060,050 100.00 470.894,200 100.00 481.060,050 100.00
i e ———— s oy

The Executive has granted the Whitewash Waiver to Interventure and parties acting in

concert with it, to waive any obligations to make a mandatory general offer which may result

from completion of the Rights Issue.

If upon completion of the Rights Issue, Interventure and parties acting in concert with it
hold more than 50% of the issued share capital of the Company, Interventure and parties

acting in concert with it will be allowed under the Takeovers Code to increase their

shareholdings in the Company without incurring any further obligations under Rule 26 of the

Takeovers Code to make a mandatory general offer.
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WARNING OF THE RISK OF DEALINGS IN NEW SHARES AND NIL-PAID RIGHTS
SHARES

New Shares have been dealt with on an ex-rights basis from 25 November 2002.
Dealings im the Rights Shares in the nil-paid form will take place from 2 December 2892
to 9 December 2002 (both days inclusive). If prior to 4:30 p.m. on 17 December 2002, the
conditions of the Rights Issue are not fulfilled or the Underwriting Agreement is
terminated by Interventure, the Rights Issue will not proceed.

Amny person contemplating buying or selling New Shares from now to 17 December
2002 which all such conditions are fulfilled (which is expected to be 17 December 2002),
and contemplating buying or selling nil-paid Rights Shares between 2 December 2002
and 9 December 2002 (both days inclusive), bears the risk that the Rights Issue may not
become uncenditional and may not proceed.

Investors may wish te obtain professional advice regarding dealings in New Shares
or nil-paid Rights Shares during these periods.

PROCEDURE FOR ACCEPTANCE OR TRANSFER

If you wish to exercise your rights to subscribe for the Rights Shares, you must lodge
the provisional allotment letter in accordance with the instructions printed thereon, together
with a remittance for the full amount payable on acceptance, with the branch share registrars
of the Company in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong by 4:00 p.m. on 13 December 2002. All remittances
must be made by cheque or cashier’s order in Hong Kong dollars. Cheques must be drawn on
an account with, and cashier’s orders must be issued by, a bank in Hong Kong and made
payable to “e-Kong Group Limited - Rights Issue Account” and crossed “Account Payee
Only”.

It should be noted that unless the provisional allotment letter, together with the
appropriate remittance, has been lodged with Secretaries Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On
Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong by 4:00 p.m. on 13 December 2002 whether
by the original allottee or any person to whom the rights have been validly transferred, the
relevant provisional allotment and all rights thereunder will be deemed to have been declined
and will be cancelled.

The provisional allotment letter contains full information regarding the procedure to be
followed if you wish to accept only part of your provisional allotment or if you wish to
renounce all or part of your provisional allotment.

If you wish to accept only part of your provisional allotment or transfer part of your

rights to subscribe for the Rights Shares provisionally allotted thereunder, or to transfer your
rights to more than one person, the entire provisional allotment letter must be surrendered and
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lodged for cancellation by not later than 4:00 p.m. on 4 December 2002 to the Company’s
branch share registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong which will cancel the original provisional allotment
letters and issue new provisional allotment letters in the denominations required.

None of the Rights Issue Documents has been registered or filed under the securities or
equivalent legislation of any jurisdiction other than Hong Kong and Bermuda. Accordingly, it
is the responsibility of anyone outside Hong Kong wishing to make an application for the
Rights Shares to satisfy himself, before acquiring any rights to subscribe for the provisionally
allotted Rights Shares, as to the observance of the laws and regulations of all relevant territories,
including the obtaining of any governmental or other consents and to pay any taxes and duties
required to be paid in such territory in connection therewith. No application for Rights Shares
will be accepted from any person whose registered address is, or as the holder of such Rights
Shares would be, in any territory outside Hong Kong. The Company reserves the right to
refuse to accept any application for Rights Shares if it believes that such acceptance would
violate the applicable securities or other laws or regulations of any jurisdiction.

All cheques and cashier’s orders will be presented for payment following receipt and all
interest earned on such monies will be retained for the benefit of the Company. Any provisional
allotment letter in respect of which the accompanying cheque is dishonoured on first
presentation is liable to be rejected, and in that event the provisional allotment and all rights
thereunder will be deemed to have been declined and will be cancelled.

If the Underwriter exercises the right to terminate its obligations under the Underwriting
Agreement, the monies received in respect of acceptances of the Rights Shares will be returned
to the Qualifying Shareholders or such other persons to whom the Rights Shares in their nil-
paid forms shall have been validly transferred without interest, by means of cheques despatched
by the ordinary post at the risk of such Qualifying Shareholders or such other persons on or
before 19 December 2002,

APPLICATION FOR EXCESS RIGHTS SHARES

Qualifying Shareholders shall be entitled to apply for any unsold entitlements of Overseas
Shareholders and any Rights Shares provisionally allotted but not accepted by Qualifying
Shareholders. Application may be made by completing the form of application for excess
Rights Shares and lodging the same with a separate remittance for the excess Rights Shares
being applied for.

If you wish to apply for any Rights Shares in addition to your provisional allotment
under the Rights Issue, you must complete and sign the form of application for excess Rights
Shares and lodge the form of application for excess Rights Shares, together with a separate
remittance for the amount payable on application in respect of the excess Rights Shares
applied for, with Secretaries Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. on 13 December 2002. All remittances must
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be made by cheque or cashier’s order in Hong Kong Dollars. Cheques must be drawn on an
account with, and cashier’s orders must be issued by, a bank in Hong Kong and made payable
to “e-Kong Group Limited — Excess Application Account” and crossed “Account Payee Only”.
Secretaries Limited will notify you of any allotment of excess Rights Shares made to you. The
Directors will allocate the excess Rights Shares at their discretion on a fair and equitable
basis, but will give preference to topping-up odd lots to whole board lots.

All cheques and cashier’s orders will be presented for payment following receipt and all
interest earned on such monies will be retained for the benefit of the Company. Any form of
application for excess Rights Shares in respect of which the accompanying cheque is
dishonoured on first presentation is liable to be rejected.

If the Underwriter exercises the right to terminate its obligations under the Underwriting
Agreement, the monies received in respect of applications for excess Rights Shares will be
returned to the Qualifying Shareholders without interest, by means of cheques despatched by
ordinary post to the Qualifying Shareholders at their risk on or before 19 December 2002.

If no excess Rights Shares are allotted to the Qualifying Shareholders, a refund cheque
for the full amount tendered on application is expected to be posted to the Qualifying
Shareholders on or before 19 December 2002. If the number of excess Rights Shares allotted
to the Qualifying Shareholders is less than that applied for, a cheque for the surplus application
monies is expected to be posted to the Qualifying Shareholders on or before 19 December
2002.

The form of application for excess Rights Shares is for use only by the Qualifying
Shareholders to whom it is addressed and is not transferable. All documents, including cheques
for amounts due, will be sent by ordinary post at the risk of the persons entitled thereto to
their registered addresses.

LISTING AND DEALINGS

Application -has been made to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in both their nil-paid and fully-paid
forms. It is expected that dealings in the Rights Shares in their nil-paid forms will take place
from 2 December 2002 to 9 December 2002, both days inclusive.

No part of the share capital of the Company is listed or dealt in or on which listing or
permission to deal is being or is proposed to be sought on any other stock exchange.

Subject to the granting of listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in both
their nil-paid and fully-paid forms on the Stock Exchange as well as compliance with the
stock admission requirements of HKSCC, the Rights Shares in both their nil-paid and fully-
paid forms will be accepted as eligible securities by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and
settlement in CCASS with effect from the commencement dates of dealings in the Rights
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Shares in their nil-paid and fully-paid forms on the Stock Exchange or such other dates as
determined by HKSCC. Settlement of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange
on any trading day is required to take place in CCASS on the second trading day thereafter.
All activities under CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational
Procedures in effect from time to time.

All necessary arrangements will be made to enable the Rights Shares in both their nil-
paid and fully-paid forms to be admitted into CCASS.

For the purpose of trading on the Stock Exchange, a board lot for the Rights Shares in
both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms will be 10,000 New Shares. Dealings in the nil-paid
and fully-paid Rights Shares will be subject to payment of stamp duty in Hong Kong.

ADJUSTMENT TO THE EXERCISE PRICES OF THE SHARE OPTIONS

Subject to the completion of the Rights Issue, the exercise prices of the Share Options
may be required to be adjusted pursuant to the share options scheme adopted on 25 October
1999 (as amended). The Company will inform the holders of Share Options regarding the
adjustment which is expected to be around 28 November 2002.

FUTURE INTENTION OF INTERVENTURE

The Directors have been informed by Interventure that it has no intention to make any
changes to the Board, the continued employment of the employees of the Group, the continuing
of the Group’s existing business or the deployment of fixed assets. The long-term justification
for the Rights Issue is explained in the section headed “Reasons for the Rights Issue and the
use of proceeds”.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the appendices to this
prospectus.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board
e-Komg Group Limited
Richard John Siemens

Chairman
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1. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised and issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2001, as at the Latest Practicable Date (being 22 November 2002) and immediately
following completion of the Rights I[ssue (assuming the Rights Issue becoming

unconditional) will be as follows:
Authorised

6,000,000,000 Existing Shares as at 31 December 2001

New Shares immediately following completion
of the Capital Reorganisation on
12,000,000,000 22 November 2002

Issued and fully paid
4,699,262,008 Existing Shares as at 31 December 2001

Existing Shares converted from preference shares
9,680,000 on 22 September 2002

Existing Shares prior to the Capital
4,708,942,008 Reorganisation becoming effective

New Shares upon completion of the Capital
235,447,100 Reorganisation on 22 November 2002

Rights Shares to be issued assuming no exercise of
235,447,100 Share Options prior to the Record Date

470,894,200 New Shares immediately following the Rights Issue

HK$

120,000,000

93,985,240

193,600

94,178,840
2,354,471
2,354,471

4,708,942

All ordinary shares of the Company in issue rank pari passu in all respects with each

other, including in particular as to dividends, voting rights and capital.

The Rights Shares, when fully-paid, and the ordinary shares of the Company to be

issued on exercise of Share Options will rank pari passu in all respects with the then

existing ordinary shares in issue, including the right to receive all future dividends and

other distributions which may be declared, made or paid after the date of issue of the

Rights Shares and the ordinary shares issued as a result of exercise of the Share Options.
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The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange and none of the
securities of the Company are listed or dealt in on any other stock exchange and no
such listing or permission to deal in respect of any other stock exchange is being or is
proposed to be sought.

Share Opticns

On 25 October 1999, the Company approved a share option scheme under which the
Directors may, at their discretion, invite any full-time employees and/or executive
directors of the Group to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares at any time
until 24 Gctober 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The maximum number of shares in
which options can be granted may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the

Company, excluding any ordinary shares issued on the exercise of the Share Options

from time to time.

The Share Option Scheme was subsequently terminated by the Company in a special
general meeting held on 28 June 2002 and a new share option scheme was adopted on
the same date. As at the Latest Practicable Date, no share option was granted under the
new scheme. The Share Options outstanding as at the Latest Practicable Date carry
rights to subscribe in cash for new ordinary shares at initial subscription prices of
between HK$0.08 and HK$0.76, subject to adjustment, and can be exercised during
various exercise periods with expiry up to and including 24 October 2009. The exercise
in full of such options (excluding those held by Mr. Siemens) would, under the present
shareholding structure of the Company, result in the issue of 5,082,925 New Shares.

Subject to the completion of the Rights Issue, the subscription price of and/or the
number of ordinary shares comprised in the outstanding Share Options will be subject

to adjustments. Such adjustments will be certified by the auditors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any other options, warrants and
other convertible securities in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date.

—25_




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

2. THREE YEAR FINANCIAL RESULTS

Set out below is a summary of the audited consolidated income statement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2001 as extracted from the annual reports of the
Group for the respective years.

Results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December

2601 2000 1999
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Turnover
Continuing operations 263,896 76,652 44210
Discontinued operations - 23,473 1,035
263,896 100,125 45,245
(Loss)/Profit from operations (681,273) 5,105 (75,170)
Share of results of associates (752) (1,110) -
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (682,025) 3,995 (75,170)
Taxation - (739) (739)
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary
activities after taxation (682,025) 3,256 (75,909)
Minority interests 710 (1,954) (2,499)
Net (loss)/prefit attributable
to shareholders (681,315) 1,302 (78,408)
(Less)/Earnings per share
Basic (35.12) cents 0.08 cent  (9.98) cents
Diluted N/A 0.07 cent N/A

Note: The Company did not declare any dividends and did not have any extraordinary items for the three
years ended 31 December 2001.
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SUMMARY OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
FOR THE TWQ YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

Set out below are the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of recognised
gains and losses, balance sheets and consolidated cash flow statement for each of the
two years ended 31 December 2001 of the Group together with the relevant notes as
extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2001.

Consolidated Income Statement
For the years ended 31 December 2000 and 2001

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$’'000

Turnover 263,896 100,125
Cost of sales (214,038) (72,570)
Gross profit 49,858 27,555
Cther revenue 4,216 28,861
Other net income - 99,908
Distribution costs (22,370) (6,086)
Business promotion and marketing expenses (31,166) (43,623)
Operating and administrative expenses (176,615) (86,180)
Other operating expenses (76,688) (6,286)
{Loss)/Profit from operations (252,765) 14,149
Finance costs 5 (1,216) (140)
Intangible assets and goodwill written off S& 12 (114,795) -
Provision for diminution in value of

investment securities (72,021) (8,904)
Unrealised holding loss on other investments (240,476) -
Share of results of associates (752) (1,110)
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities

before taxation 5 (682,025) 3,995
Taxation 7 - (739)
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities

after taxation (682,025) 3,256
Minority interests ' 710 (1,954)
Net (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders 8 & 23 (681,315) 1,302
(Loss)/Earnings per share 9

Basic (35.12) cents 0.08 cent

Diluted N/A 0.07 cent

Note: The Company did not declare any dividend and did not have any extraordinary items for the two
vear ended 31 December 2001.
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
For the years ended 31 December 2000 and 2001

Exchange difference on translation of
foreign subsidiaries

Exchange reserve released on disposal of
subsidiaries

Goodwill previously eliminated directly
against reserves written off
to income statement

Other capital reserve and goodwill on
consolidation released
on disposal of subsidiaries

Net (loss)/profit for the year attributable
to shareholders

Total recognised (losses)/gains

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries
eliminated directly against reserves

2001 2000
HK$’000 HK3$'000
381 (388)

- (1,117)

69,335 -

- 1,647
(681,315) 1,302
(611,599) 1,444
- (7,134)
(611,599) (5,690)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2000 and 2001

2901
HK$°000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-curremnt assets

Property, plant and equipment 215,428
Intangible assets -
Interests in associates 4,838
Investment securities 31,434

2000
HK$’000

91,049
42,366
12,687
302,381

251,700

448,483

Current assets

Other investments 47,737 -
Properties held for sale - 3,734
Inventories - 978
Trade and other receivables 54,230 73,791
Pledged deposits . 7,107 68,680
Cash and cash equivalents 111,349 344,308
220,423 491,491
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 68,556 97,657
Current portion of obligations under
finance leases 20 11,372 582
109,928 98,239
Net current assets 110,495 393,252
Total assets less current liabilities 362,195 841,735
Long-term liabilities
Obligations under finance leases , 20 4,885 -
Minority interests - 119
NET ASSETS 357,310 841,616
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 21 103,665 40,879
Reserves 23 253,645 800,737
357,310 841,616
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Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2000 and 2001

2001 2000
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,115 1,184
Interests in subsidiaries 11 515,300 537,034
Interests in associates 13 6,806 9,215
523,221 547,433
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 843 14,350
Pledged deposits 17 3,007 68,680
Cash and cash equivalents 18 90,577 319,439
94,427 402,469
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - 19 7,337 7,065
Net current assets 87,090 395,404
NET ASSETS 610,311 942,837
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 21 103,665 40,879
Reserves 23 506,646 901,958
610,311 942,837
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statememnt
For the years ended 31 December 2000 and 2001

2001 2000
HK3$°000 HK$°000

Net cash outflow from operating activities (191,292) (86,613)

Returns on investments and servicing of fimance

Interest received 4,216
Income from unlisted investments -
Interest on obligations under finance leases (1,216)

Net cash inflow from returns on investments

and servicing of finance 3,000 28,721
Taxation
Overseas tax paid C— (212)

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (134,564) (101,597)
Purchase of intangible assets (4,313) (42,748)
Purchase of investment securities and other

investments (131,294) (206,946)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment 1,181 1,235
Proceeds from disposal of other investments 23,200 -
Net repayment/(advances) from/to associates 7,195 (12,463)
Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash and

cash equivalents acquired) 26 (1,603) (3,030)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and

cash equivalents disposed) 27 15,0600 (5,068)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (225,198) (370,617)
Net cash outflow before financing activities (413,490) (428,721)
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Conselidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2000 and 2001

Financing
Issue of ordinary shares

Capital contributed by minority shareholders
Repayment of obligations under finance leases

Net cash inflow from financing

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 january

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash eguivalents

Pledged deposits

Fixed deposits

Bank balances and cash

-32—

2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK$°000
127,293 742,046
591 -
(8,926) (212)
118,958 741,834
(294,532) 313,113
412,988 99,875
118,456 412,988
7,107 68,680
4,000 317,762
107,349 26,546
118,456 412,988
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2001

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
ordinary shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

Basis of preparation
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost, as
modified for revaluation of certain investments in securities as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Basis of conseolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December 2001.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are accounted for from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal respectively.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Goodwill on consolidation

Positive goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

In respect of subsidiaries acquired before 1 January 2001, the related positive goodwill has been
eliminated against reserves and, as permitted by the SSAP 30, has not been restated. Provision for
impairment losses has been made against such goodwill in accordance with SSAP 31. For subsidiaries
acquired on or after 1 January 2001, the related positive goodwill is amortised to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. Positive goodwill is carried
as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.

In respect of acquisitions of associates, positive goodwill is amortised to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. The cost of positive goodwill less
any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses is included in the carrying amount of the
interest in associates.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries and associates represents the excess of the
Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the
acquisition. In respect of subsidiaries acquired before 1 January 2001, the related negative goodwill
has been credited to capital reserve. For subsidiaries acquired on or after 1 January 2001, to the
extent that negative goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, it is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the future losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative
goodwill up to the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised in the consolidated

—33 -




APPENDIX [

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

income statement over the weighted average useful life of depreciable non-monetary assets. Negative
goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill not previously amortised through the consolidated income statement or which has previously
been dealt with as a movement on Group reserves is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an enterprise, in which the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In the Company’s

balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, in which the Group or the Company has significant influence and
which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the Group or the Company. In the Company’s
balance sheet, investments in associates are stated at cost less provision, if necessary.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised
as an income or expense in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful life from the date on which they become fully operational and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement Over the remaining lease term
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 10% - 33%
Machinery and equipment 10% - 33%

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise business assets acquired and goodwill arising on business combination
(other than acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate) and are amortised over their estimated useful
life. Business assets include mainly business plans, business contracts, copyrights, other intellectual
property rights and customers list.

EInvestments in securities

Investment securities held for an identified long-term purpose are stated at cost and subject to
impairment review at each reporting date to reflect any diminution in their value, which is expected
to be other than temporary. The amount of provisions is recognised in the income statement in the
period in which the decline occurs.

Securities not classified as investment securities are classified as other investments, which are

stated at fair value in the balance sheet. The unrealised holding gains and losses for other investments
are included in the income statement.
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The gain or loss on disposal of investment securities and other investments is the difference between
ret sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the securities and is accounted for in the period in
which the disposal occurs.

Impairment loss

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its net selling price and value in use, in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably.

Income in respect of telecommunications services provided to customers is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Income in respect of corporate management services is recognised when the event management
services are rendered.

Other income includes internet security solution services income, sale of computer hardware and
software and insurance and management consulting income. Internet security solution services
income and insurance and management consulting income are recognised in the period when the
services are rendered. Sale of computer hardware and software is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Investment income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair
value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant lease
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are retranslated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at that date. Translation
differences are included in the income statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries denominated in currencies other
than Hong Kong dollars, are translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All exchange differences arising on consolidation are dealt with in the exchange reserve.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-
assessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain
items of income and expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised
in the financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences, computed using the liability method,
is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a
liability or asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised
unless its realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated cash flow statement, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which were
within three months of maturity when acquired, less advances from banks repayable within three
months from the date of the advance. For balance sheet classification, cash equivalents represent
assets similar in nature to cash which are not restricted as to use.

Related party

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover and revenue recognised by category are analysed as follows:

Group
2001 2000
HK3’000 HK$'000
Turnover

Telecommunication services income 224,162 63,740
Corporate management services income 34912 1,284
Sale of animated films - 23,473
Others 4,822 11,628
263,896 100,125

Other revenue
Interest income 4,216 28,795
Income from unlisted investments - 66
4,216 28,861

Revenue 268,112 128,986
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4. OTHER NET INCOME

Gain on disposal of investment securities
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

QOthers

5. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated after charging:

(2)

(b)

6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION

Finance costs

Finance charges on obligations under finance leases

Other items

Amortisation of intangible assets included in
other operating expenses

Auditors’ remuneration

Bad debts written off

Provision for doubtful debts

Cost of inventories and services provided

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:
Owned assets
Assets held under finance leases

Intangible assets and goodwill written off:
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Loss on disposal of other investments

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of properties held for sale

Operating lease charges on premises

Staff costs

Group
2001 2000
HK3$'000 HK$’000
- 76,051
- 23,210
- 311
- 336
- 99,908
Group
2001 2000
HKS$'000 HK$’000
1,216 140
2,471 1,163
1,182 1,000
27,237 42
6,170 1,100
214,038 72,570
29,937 10,508
2,197 -
44,208 -
70,587 -
3,807 -
1,471 152
2,111 -
12,612 2,685
122,423 46,228

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
is as follows:

Fees

Salaries, other emoluments and other benefits in kind
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No fees or emoluments were paid to the independent non-executive directors during the year (2000:
Nil).

In additions to the above emoluments, certain directors were granted share options under the
Company’s employee share option scheme. Details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under the
paragraph “Directors’ Interests in Securities” in the Directors’ Report.

In the absence of a ready market for the options granted on the shares of the Company, the directors
are unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of the options granted to the respective
directors.

The remuneration of directors was within the following bands:

Number of directors

HKS 2001 2000
Nil 12 6
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 1

14 8

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
Individuals with highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2000: two) were directors whose

emoluments are disclosed above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2000: three) individuals were as follows:

2001 2600

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 4,981 3,370
Severance payment 325 -
5,306 3,370

Number of individuals

HKS 2001 2000
Nil - 1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 - 2
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 3 _

3 3
TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group incurred a loss for taxation purposes for
the year.

Taxation charge of HK$739,000 for the year ended 31 December 2000 represented Peoples’ Republic
of China income tax calculated at the prevailing rate.

The major components of deferred taxation not (credited)/provided for the year are as follows:

Group
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$°000
Excess of tax allowances over depreciation 504 1,830
Tax losses (60,412) (17,952)
(59,908) (16,122)
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10.

NET (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TG SHAREHOLDERS

The net (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders includes a loss of the Company amounted to
HK$459,819.000 (2000: profit of HK$31,713,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2001 was based on the
consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of HK$681,315,000 (2000: profit of HK$1,302,000)
and on the weighted average number of 1,940,200,731 (2000: 1,731,573,250) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The fully diluted loss per share for 2001 is not shown because the potential ordinary shares would
decrease the loss per share and would be regarded as anti-dilutive.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for 2000 was based on the consolidated profit attributable
to shareholders of approximately HK$1,302,000 and the diluted weighted average number of
1,825,717,799 ordinary shares. For the purposes of calculating the diluted weighted average number
of shares, the dilutive potential ordinary shares resulting from the outstanding share options and
convertible preference shares were deemed to be issued as if all outstanding options and convertible
preference shares have been exercised on the date when the options and convertible preference
shares were granted.

The comparative amount of the earnings per share and diluted earnings per share have been adjusted
for the effect of the rights issue of 3,139,294,672 shares of the Company during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
Machinery equipment,
and Leasehold furniture
Group equipment improvement and fittings Total
HK3'000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$'000
Cost
At 1 January 2001 84,397 1,326 15,253 100,976
Additions 148,723 746 9,696 159,165
Disposals 1,127) (1,134) (2,740) (5,001)
At 31 December 2001 231,993 938 22,209 255,140
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2001 7,092 302 2,533 9,927
Charge for the year 25,386 267 6,481 32,134
Disposals (844) (337) (1,168) (2,349)
At 31 December 2001 31,634 232 7,846 39,712
Net book value
At 31 December 2001 200,359 706 14,363 215,428
At 31 December 2000 77,305 1,024 12,720 91,049
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The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment includes an amount of
HK$22,262,000 (2000: HK$794,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.
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Office
equipment,
Leasehold furniture
Company improvement and fittings Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost
At 1 January 2001 11 1,625 1,636
Additions - 534 534
Disposals - (130) (130)
At 31 December 2001 11 2,029 2,040
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2001 4 448 452
Charge for the year 7 510 517
Disposals - (44) (44)
At 31 December 2001 11 914 925
Net book value
At 31 December 2001 - 1,115 1,115
At 31 December 2000 7 1,177 1,184
11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost - -
Due from subsidiaries 816,300 537,034
Less: Provision (301,000) -
515,300 537,034
Details of the principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are as follows:
Place of Issued and  Percentage of share
incorporation/  fully paid up capital heid by Principal
Name of subsidiary operation  share capital the Company activities
Directly  Indirectly
ZONE Group Inc. Cayman Islands US$100 - 100% Investment holding
ZONE Global Limited British Virgin USs!t - 100% Investment holding
Islands
ZONE Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Provision of

telecommunication
services
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Name of subsidiary

ZONE Telecom
Pte Ltd

ZONE USA, Inc.

ZONE Telecom, Inc.

E-Force Limited

EventClicks Global
Limited

EventClicks Limited

EventClicks Singapore
Pte Limited

speedinsure Global
Limited

speedinsure.com
Limited

speedinsure Singapore
Pte Lid

Cyber Insurance
Brokers Limited

magictel.com Limited

NETdefence Company
Limited

China Portal Limited

Crystal Kingdom Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation

Singapore

United States
of America

United States
of America
Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Singapore

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Singapore

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

British Virgin
Islands

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

$$100.000

US$10

Uss10

HKS2

US$1,075,269

HK$500,000

82

US$10,000

HK$10,000

S§2

HKS$5,000,000

HK$1.000

HK$10,000

USs1

USs!
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Percentage of share
capital held by
the Company

Directly

Indirectly

- 100%

- 100%

100%

100%

- 93%

- 9%

- 93%

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 100%

- 51%

100% -

100% -

Principal
activities

Provision of
telecommunication
services

Investment holding

Provision of
telecommunication
services

Asset holding

Investment holding

Provision of
corporate
management
services

Provision of
corporate
management
services

[nvestment holding
Provision of sales
and fulfillment
solution

Provision of sales
and fulfillment
solution

Insurance brokerage
Provision of
telecommunication
services

Provision of
internet security

solution

Investment holding

Investment holding
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12.

Place of

incorporation/

Name of subsidiary
e-Kong Services
Limited

e-Kong Piilars
Holdings Limited

¢-Kong Pillars Limited

e-Kong Ventures
Limited

operation
British Virgin
[slands

British Virgin
Islands

British Virgin
[slands

British Virgin
Islands

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

USS$1

Us$1

USs1

US$!

i

{

i

Percentage of share
capital held by
the Company

Directly  Indirectly

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

The above summary includes those subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Company’s directors, principally affected the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January

Opening carrying amount
Additions

Amortisation charge
Write-off

Closing carrying amount
At 31 December

At 31 December
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Closing carrying amount

Group
2001 2000
HKS$'000 HK$000
42,366 781
4,313 42,748
(2,471) (1,163)
(44,208) -
- 42,366
- 43,529
- (1,163)
- 42,366

The write-off of the intangible assets during the year related to business assets and goodwill on

business combination in respect of the telecommunication business.

In view of the depressed market for information technology, Internet related businesses and global
telecommunication business, the management considered that impairment losses on the intangible

assets had occurred and should be recognised during the year.
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13.

14.

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company
2001 2900 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Share of net assets (1,911) (1,257) - -
Due from associates 6,749 13,944 6,806 9,215
4,838 12,687 6,806 9,215

Details of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities, at the balance sheet date are as

follow:
Place of Issued and
incorperation/ fully paid up
Name of associate operation share capital

CIB (Holdings) British Virgin US$1,000
Limited Islands
Cyber Insurance Singapore $5450,000

Brokers(s) Pte Ltd.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

At cost less provision:
Equity securities, unlisted
Equity securities, listed outside Hong Kong

Market value of listed securities

OTHER INVESTMENTS

At fair value:
Equity securities at market value,
listed outside Hong Kong

Securities portfolio, unlisted

The securities portfolio is made up of listed securities.

—43 -

Percentage of share
capital held by
the Company

Directly  Indirectly

- 28%

- 28%

2001
HK$°000

31,434

Principal
activities

Investment holding

Insurance brokerage

Group
2000
HKS$'000

133,456
168,925

31,434

302,381

169,642

2001
HK$’000

16,560

31,177

Group
2000
HK$'000

47,737
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16.

17.

18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group

Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’

Trade receivables 37,943 36,368

Other receivables
Deposits, prepayments and other debtors 16,287 37,423

000 HK3$°000

843 14,350

54,230 73,791

843 14,350

The Group’s credit terms on credit sales mainly range from 30 days to 90 days. Included in trade
and other receivables are trade debtors (net of provision for bad and doubtful debts) with the

following ageing analysis.

Group
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current 29,048 23,735
1 to 3 months 5,922 10,736
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 2,973 1,897
37,943 36,368

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had pledged deposits amounting HK$7,107,000
(2000: HK$68,680,000) and HK$3,007,000 (2000: HK$68,680,000) respectively to banks for

guarantee.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group

Company

2001 2000 2901 2000
HK3'000 HK3°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bank balances and cash 107,349 26,546 90,577 6,677
Time deposits 4,000 317,762 - 312,762
111,349 344,308 - 90,577 319,439

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group

Company

2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK3°000 HK$'000

Trade payables 42,041 17,783

Other payables

Accrued charges and other creditors 56,515 78,378 2,816 477
Due to subsidiaries - - 4,521 5,092
Due to an associate - 1,496 - 1,496

98,556 97,657 7,337 7,065
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20.

21.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing analysis.

Group
2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current 12,617 7,244
1 to 3 months 16,580 8,525
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 12,844 2,014
42,041 17,783

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows:

Group
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
2001 2600 2001 2000

HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Within one year 12,555 617 11,372 582
After 1 year but within 2 years 5,123 - 4,885 -

17,678 617 16,257 582
Future finance charges (1,421) (35) - -
Present value of lease obligations 16,257 582 16,257 582

ISSUED CAPITAL

2001 2000
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Authorised HKS$’000 HK$000
Preference shares of HK$1 each
At 1 January and at 31 December 288,929,402 288,929 288,929,402 288,929
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
At 1 January 3,000,000,000 60,000 1,500,000,000 30,000
Increase of ordinary shares 3,000,000,000 60,000 1,500,000,000 30,000
At 31 December 6,000,000,000 120,000  3,000,000,000 60,000
Total 408,929 348,929
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(b)

(©

2001 2000
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Issued and fully paid HK3’000 HK$’000
Preference shares of HK$1 each
At 1 January 9,680,000 9,680 170,970,968 170,971
Converted to ordinary shares - - (161,290,968) (161,291)
At 31 December 9,680,000 9,680 9,680,000 9,680
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
At 1 January 1,559,959,336 31,199 1,159,449,380 23,189
Issue of ordinary shares 3,139,294,672 62,786 230,000,000 4,600
Converted from
preference shares - - 161,290,968 3,226
Exercise of share options 8,000 - 9,218,988 184
At 31 December 4,699,262,008 93,985 1,559,959,336 31,199
Total 103,665 40,879
(a) By an ordinary resolution passed at a special general meeting on 23 November 2001, the

authorised ordinary share capital of the Company was increased to HK$120,000,000 by the
creation of 3,000,000,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each.

In April 2001, share options were exercised to subscribe for 8,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the Company at a consideration of HK$3,920.

In December 2001, 3,139,294,672 new ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were issued by
way of a rights issue on the basis of two rights shares for every one existing ordinary share,
and two rights shares for every one convertible preference share held, at an issue price of
HK$0.0425 per share (the “Rights Issue”). The net proceeds of the Rights Issue are used for
providing additional working capital of the Group.

All the new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all aspects with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company.

According to the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws and the conditions of the issue of
the preference shares, the holders of preference shares are entitled to convert all or any of
the preference shares into fully paid ordinary shares on the basis of one ordinary share of
HK$0.02 each for every HK$1 in nominal value of preference shares so converted. In each
year the preference shares may be converted on any of the following dates:

(1) the date falling on the 30th day after the date on which the audited financial statements
of the Company for the last preceding accounting period are despatched to the
holders of the preference shares; or

(i1) the date falling on the 30th day after the date on which the interim results of the
Company in respect of any current accounting period are announced; or

(iii)  such other dates as may be notified in writing by the directors to the holders of the
preference shares not less than 30 days before such date.

In addition, as resolved by the directors on 16 December 1998, the preference shares may

be converted on every second Wednesday and every last Wednesday of each month, and if
such date is not a business day, on the next business day.
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The Company may in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda and subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws determine to redeem the relevant shares on any
conversion date for a sum equal to (i) the nominal capital paid up or credited as paid up
thereon; (ii) a fixed premium equal to five percent of the amount of such nominal capital;
and (iii) outstanding dividends, out of funds of the Company which would otherwise be
available for dividend or distribution to the holders of any class of share or out of the
proceeds of a new issue of ordinary share.

22. SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

In accordance with the Company’s employee share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted in a special general meeting held on 25 October 1999, the directors of the
Company may, at their discretion, invite eligible employees, including executive directors
of the Company, to take up share options to subscribe for shares in the Company. Any share
option granted can be exercised within the period as set out in the terms and conditions for
the Scheme. The subscription price for the Company’s share under the Scheme is determined
by the board of directors and shall not be less than the higher of 80% of the average of the
closing market prices of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the options or the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Details of the share options granted by the Company under the Scheme and the share
options outstanding at 31 December 2001 are set out as follows:

Number of share options

, Adjusted At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed At3l

Exercisable exercise Janvary  during during during  December

Date of grant  period price 2001  the year  the year the year 2001

HKS

25.10.1999 25.10.2000-24.10.2009 0.14 42,111,235 - - - 42,111,235
16.11.1999 16.11.2000-24.10.2009 0.16 6,045,000 - (8,000) (1,212,000) 4,825,000
23.12.1999 23.12.2000-24.10.2009 0.20 3,950,000 - - - 3,950,000
03.01.2000 03.01.2001-24.10.2009 0.23 3,025,000 - - - 3,025,000
24.01.2000 24.01.2000-24.10.2009 0.23 28,700,000 - - - 28,700,000
24.01.2000 21.02.2000-24.10,2009 0.23 7,635,000 - - (135,000)  7.500,000
25.01.2000 01.03.2000-24.10.2009 0.23 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
03.03.2000 03.04.2000-24.10.2009 0.76 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000
03.03.2000 03.03.2001-24.10.2009 0.76 3,650,000 - - (500,000) 3,150,000
28.04.2000 28.04.2001-24.10.2009 0.33 5,975,000 - - (1,060,000) 4,915,000
01.06.2000 01.06.2001 -24.10.2009  0.34 250,000 - - (250,000) -
09.08.2000 09.08.2001-24.10.2009 0.23 1,000.000 - - (450,000)  550.000
25.10.2000 25.10.2001-24.10.2009 012 10,372,274 - - (440,000) 9,932,274
16.05.2001 16.05.2001-01.04.2003 0.08 - 200,000 - - 200,000
TOTAL 134.213,509 200,000 (8,000)  (4.047,000) 130,358,509
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23.

The exercise price per share option was adjusted by the multiplier of 0.3320 in January
2002 as a result of completion of the Rights Issue.

(b) During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Company adopted employee share option schemes
(“Subsidiary Schemes”), each in terms and conditions as adopted and approved in a special
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2001, whereby certain directors and chief
executive of the Company, who are also directors of these subsidiaries, are eligible under
Subsidiary Schemes to subscribe for shares in the respective subsidiaries under the terms
and conditions stipulated therein. No share option has ever been granted in any of the

Subsidiary Schemes since adoption.

RESERVES

Group

At | January 2000

Share issue

Share issue expenses

Release on disposal
of subsidiaries

Exchange difference

on translation of foreign

subsidiaries

Goodwill on acquisition

of subsidiaries
Net profit attributable
to shareholders

At 31 December 2000

Share issue
Share issue expenses
Exchange difference

on translation of foreign

subsidiaries

Goodwill on consolidation -

written off
Net loss attributable
to shareholders

At 31 December 2001

Company

At 1 January 2000

Share issue

Share issue expenses

Net profit attributable
to shareholders

At 31 December 2000

Share issue

Share issue expenses

Net loss attributable
to shareholders

At 31 December 2001

Capital Other  Goodwill
Share Exchange redemption capital  on conso- Accumulated

premium reserve reserve reserve lidation losses Total
HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
227,407 1,117 6 (1,087) (62,761) (253,582)  (88,900)
912,221 - ~ - - - 912,221
(16,894) - ~ - _ - (16,894)

- (L1 ~ 1,087 560 - 530

- (388) ~ - - - (388)

- - ~ - (7,134) - (7,134)

- - ~ - - 1,302 1,302
1,122,734 (388) 6 - (69,333) (252,280) 800,737
70,638 - ~ - - - 70,638
(6,131 - ~ - - - (6,131)

- 381 - - - - 381

- - - - 69,335 - 69,335

- - - - - (681,313)  (681,315)
1,187,241 0 6 - - (933,595) 253,645
227,407 - 6 - - (252,495)  (25,082)
912,221 - - - - - 912,221
(16,894) - - - - - (16,894)
- - - - - 31,713 3713
1,122,734 - 6 - - (220,782) 901,958
70,638 - - - - - 70,638
6,131) - - - - - (6,131

- - - - - (459,819)  (459.819)
1,187,241 - 6 - - (680,601) 506,646
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24,

25.

26.

RECONCILIATION OF (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH OUTFLOW

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/Profit before taxation
Interest income
Income from unlisted investments
Interest on obligations under finance leases
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and goodwill written off
Unrealised holding loss on other investments
Provision for diminution in value of investment
securities
Share of results of associates
Amortisation of long-term investments
Bad debts written off
Provision for doubtful debts
Loss on disposal of other investments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of investment securities
Amortisation of intangible assets
Changes in working capital:
Properties held for sale
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Effect of exchange rate changes

Net cash outflow from operating activities

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

2001 2000
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
(682,025) 3,995

(4,216) (28,795)
- (66)
1,216 140
32,134 10,508
1,471 152
114,795 -
240,476 -
72,021 8,904
752 1,110
- 1,000
27,237 42
6,170 1,100
3,807 -
- (23,521)
- (76,051)
2,471 1,163
3,734 (3,734)
978 (2,399)
(13,185) (70,275)
491 90,114
381 -
(191,292) (86,613)

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of machinery and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the arrangements of HK$24,601,000 (2000: HK$794,000).

PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES

Net liabilities acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables

Goodwill

Satisfied by:
Cash
Direct costs incurred
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2001 2000
HK$°000 HKS$'000
- 303
759 308
397 2,219
(408) (5,203)
748 (1,873)
1,252 7,122
2,000 5,249
2,000 5,000
- 249
2,000 5,249
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27.

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash acquired
Cash payment for direct costs

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the purchase of subsidiaries

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Long-term investments
Inventories
Other investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Taxation
Minority interests
Exchange reserve
Other capital reserve
Reserve on consolidation

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Analysis of the net inflow/{outflow)
subsidiaries:

2001 2000
HKS$000 HKS$'000
2,000 5,000
(397) (2,219)
- 249
1.603 3,030
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
- 10,219
- 5,757
- 2,016
15,000 -
- 10,733
- 5,068
- (12,952)
- (616)
- (14,276)
- (1,117)
- 1,087
- 560
15.000 6,479
- 23,521
15,000 30,000

of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of

2001 2000

HK$’000 HKS3°000

Cash consideration 15,000 -

Cash and bank balances disposed - (5,068)
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries 15,000 (5,068)
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28.

29,

34.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR

Essued capital Obligations

and under Minority

share premium finance leases interests

HK3$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

At 1 January 2000 . 250,596 12,441
Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 742,046 -
Inception of finance leases contracts - -
Share of profit for the year - 1,954
Disposal of subsidiaries - (14,276)
Conversion of preference shares 161,291 -
At 31 December 2000 1,153,933 119
Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing ’ 127,293 (8,926) 591
Inception of finance leases contracts - 24,601 -
Share of loss for the year - - (710)
At 31 December 2001 1,281,226 16,257 -

COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

At the balance sheet date, total outstanding commitments in respect of land and buildings under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK3$'000 HKS$°000

Operating leases which expire:

Within one year 10,361 4,515 651 1,284
In the second to fifth years inclusive 4,144 1,784 - 31
14,505 6,299 651 1,315

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the deferred taxation liabilities/(assets) unprovided
are as follows:

Group
2001 2000
HK$°000 HK$'000
Excess of tax allowances over depreciation 2,691 2,187
Tax losses carried forward (88,833) (28,421)
(86,142) (26,234)

A potential deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial statements in respect of tax
losses available to set off future profits as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised in the
foreseeable future.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
During the year, the Group paid international telecommunication services fee of HK$6,563,000
(2000: HK$4,471,000) to Mandarin Communications Limited, a subsidiary of SUNDAY
Communications Limited (“SUNDAY"”). Messrs. Richard John Siemens, Kuldeep Saran and William
Bruce Hicks are directors of both the Company and SUNDAY.

32. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The analysis of the principal business activities and geographical area of operations of the Group
during the year are as follows:

(a) By business segments

Year ended 31 December 2001

Telecom- Corporate
munication management
services services Others Consolidated

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$°000

Turnover
External sales 224,162 34,912 4,822 263,896
Result
Loss from operations (163,391) (22,612) (16,107) (202,110)
Intangible assets and goodwill

written off (105,628) (2,508) (6,659) (114,795)

(269,019) (25,120) (22,766) (316,905)

Finance costs (1,216)
Other operating income and expenses (50,655)
Unrealised holding loss on other investments (240,476)
Provision for diminution in value of investment securities (72,021)
Share of results of associates (752)
Loss from ordinary activities (682,025)
Minority interests 710
Net loss attributable to shareholders (681,315)
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Year ended 31 December 2001

Telecom- Corporate
munication  management
services services QOthers  Elimination Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Gther information
Capital expenditure 158,635 3,076 1,234
Depreciation and amortisation 30,725 1,286 2,076
Significant non-cash expenses
(other than depreciation
and amortisation) 7,678 - 271
Assets
Segment assets 268,899 8,134 9,715 (382) 286,366
Interests in associates 4,838
Unallocated assets 761,790
Intra-segment elimination (580,871)
472,123
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 618,010 34,629 39,858 (581,253) 111,244
Unallocated liabilities 3,569
114,813
Year ended 31 December 2060
Telecom- Corporate
munication management
services services Others Conssclidated
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000
Turnover
External sales 63,740 1,284 35,101 100,125
Result
Loss from operations (76,864) 9,777) (2,607) (89,248)
Finance costs (140)
Other operating income and expenses 103,397
Provision for diminution in value of investment securities (8,904)
Share of results of associates (1,110)
Profit from ordinary activities before taxation 3,995
Taxation (739)
Profit after ordinary activities after taxation 3,256
Minority interests (1,954)
Net profit attributable to shareholders 1,302
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Year ended 31 December 2000

Telecom- Corporate
munication management
services services Others
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Other information
Capital expenditure 134,957 3,276 5,779
Depreciation and amortisation 8,760 345 2,266
Significant non-cash expenses
(other than depreciation and
amortisation) 1,142 - -
Assets
Segment assets 198,575 2,260 17,070
Interests in associates
Unallocated assets
[ntra-segment elimination
Liabilities
Segment Habilities 340,701 7,651 31,253

Unallocated liabilities
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Elimination
HKS$'000

(303)

(283,766)

Consolidated
HK$'000

217,602
12,687

993,148

(283,463)

939,974

95,839
2519

98,358
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(b) By geographical segments

Year ended 31 December 2001

Asia North
Pacific America Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Turnover
External sales 150,319 113,577 263,896
Result
Loss from operations (105,181) (96,929) (202,110)
Intangible assets and goodwill
written off (79,102) (35,693) (114,795)
(184,283) (132,622) (316,905)
Finance costs (1,216)
Other operating income and expenses (50,655)
Unrealised holding loss on other investments (240,476)
Provision for diminution in value of investment securities (72,021)
Share of results of associates (752)
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation (682,025)
Minority interests 710
Net loss attributable to shareholders (681,315)
=== s o o
Other information
Segment assets 313,551 153,734 467,285
Interests in associates 4,838
472,123
Capital expenditure 92,311 71,167
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Year ended 31 Becember 2000

Asia North
Pacific America Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Turnover
External sales 67,603 32,522 100,125
Result
Loss from operations (78,681) (10,567) (89,248)
Finance costs (140)
Other operating income and expenses 103,397
Provision for diminution in value of investment securities (8,904)
Share of results of associates (1,110)
Profit from ordinary activities before taxation 3,995
Taxation (739
Profit from ordinary activities after taxation 3,256
Minority interests (1,954)
Net profit attributable to shareholders 1,302
QOther information
Segment assets 786,027 141,260 927,287
Interests in associates 12,687
939,974
Capital expenditure 47,886 97,253

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
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UNAUDITED CONSCOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
36 JUNE 2002

The following is extracted from the unaudited consolidated interim report of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2002.

Condensed Consolidated Income Statement

Six months ended 30 June

2002 2001
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Note HKS$'000 HK$’000
Turnover 2 140,592 126,923
Cost of sales (102,909) (101,170)
Gross profit 37,683 25,753
Other revenue 3 1,261 3,747
38,944 29,500
Distribution costs (12,736) (11,296)
Business promotion and marketing expenses (3,767) (20,688)
Operating and administrative expenses (78,756) (108,469)
Depreciation and amortisation (22,686) (16,342)
Loss from operations (79,001) (127,295)
Finance costs (770) (105)
Intangible assets and goodwill written off - (112,956)
Provision for diminution in value
of investment securities (26,882) (118,945)
Unrealised holding loss on other investments (8,675) (177,283)
Share of results of associates - -(501)
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation (115,328) (537,085)
Taxation 4 - -
Loss from ordinary activities after taxation (115,328) (537,085)
Minority interests - -
Net loss attributable to shareholders (115,328) (537,085)
Loss per share 5
Basic (2.45) cents (29.89) cents
Diluted N/A N/A
EBITDA 6 (56,315) (110,953)

The Company did not declare any dividends and did not have any extraordinary items for each of the six
months ended 30 June 2001 and 30 June 2002.
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS AND LIABILEITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in associates
Investment securities

Current assets

Other investments

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of obligations
under finance leases

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Obligations under finance leases

Minority interests

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital
Reserves
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As at

As at
30 June 31 December
2002 2001
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
7 211,511 215,428
4,838 4,838
4,552 31,434
220,901 251,700
24,339 47,737
S 44,497 54,230
7,714 7,107
33,120 111,349
109,670 220,423
9 78,360 98,556
9,694 11,372
88,054 109,928
21,616 110,495
242,517 362,195
1,017 4,885
241,500 357,310
103,665 103,665
137,835 253,645
241,500 357,310
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

As at ] January 2001

Share issued at premium

Share issue expenses

Exchange difference on
translation of foreign
subsidiaries

Goodwill on consoli-
dation written off

Net loss attributable

to shareholders

As at 31 December 2001

Share issue expenses

Exchange difference on
translation of foreign
subsidiaries

Net loss attributable

to shareholders

As at 30 June 2002

Capital Reserveon  Accumu-

Share Share  Exchange redemption  consolid- lated
capital  premium reserve reserve ation losses Total
(Unandited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
40,879 1,122,734 (388) 6 (69,335)  (252,280) 841,616
62,786 70,638 - - - - 133,424
- (6,131) - - - - (6,131)
- - 381 - - - 381
- - - - 69,335 - 69,335
- - - - - (681,315)  (681,313)
103,665 1,187,241 (7 6 - (933,595) 357,310
- (489) - - - - (489)
- - 7 - - - 7
- - - - - (115,328)  (115,328)
103,665  1,186.752 - 6 - (1,048,923) 241,500

— 50 —



APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Sik months ended 30 June

2002 2001
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Net cash outflow from operating activities (75,701) (136,324)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from returns on
investments and servicing of finance (522) 3.642
Tax Paid - -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (18,769) (89,978)
Net cash sutflew before financing activities (94,992) (222,660)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing
activities (6,028) 7,501
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (101,020) (215,159)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 166,193 412,988
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 june 65,173 197,829
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 33,120 85,291
Pledged deposits 7.714 5,000
Other investments 24,339 107,538
65,173 197,829
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Notes:
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) No. 25 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the applicable disclosure requirements under Appendix
16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

2. Turnover and segmental information

The analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by principal business activities and geographical
area of operations during the period are as follows:

(a) by business segments:
Six months ended 30 June 2062 Six months ended 30 June 2001
Telecom- Telecom-
munication Consoli- munication Consoli-
services Others dated services Others dated

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover

External sales 131,187 9,405 140,592 105,078 21,845 126,923
Result

Loss from operations (62,708) (8,477) (71,185) (84.394) (21,677 (106,071)

Intangible assets and
goodwill written off - -

(105,718) (7,238) (112,956)

(62,708) $477) (LIS (190,112)  (28915)  (219,027)

Finance costs (770) (105)
Other operating income

and expenses (7,816) (21,224)
Unrealised holding loss

on other investments (8,675) (177,283)

Provision for diminution in

value of investment

securities (26,882) (118,945)
Share of results of associates - (501)

Net loss attributable to
shareholders (115,328) (537,085)
[——— -} | e}
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(b) by geographical segments:

Six months ended 30 June 2002 Six months ended 30 June 2001
Asia North Consoli- Asia North Consoli-
Pacific America dated Pacific America dated

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) {(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Turnover
External sales 64,249 76,343 140,592 71,420 55,503 126,923
Result
Loss from operations (14,264) (56,921) (71,185) (58,709) (47,362) (106,071}
Intangible assets and
goodwill written off - - - (77,263) (35,693) (112,956)
(14,264) (56,921) (71,185) (135,972) (83,055) 219,027y
Finance costs {770) (105)
Other operating income
and expenses (7,816) (21,224)
Unrealised holding loss
on other investments (8,675) (177.283)

Provision for diminution in
value of investment
securities (26,882) (118.945)

Share of results of associates (501)

Net loss attributable to
shareholders (115,328) (537,085)
T SRR -]

3. OTHER REVENUE

Six months ended 30 June

2002 2001

(Unaudited) {(Unaudited)

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest income 248 3,747
Others 1,013 -
1,261 3,747

4. TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax and overseas taxation have not been provided as the Group has no assessable
profits for the period (30 June 2001: Nil).

S. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic loss per share for the six months ended 30 June 2002 was based upon the
consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of HK$115,328,000 (30 June 2001 : HK$537,085,000)

and on the weighted average number of 4,699,262,008 (30 June 2001: 1,797,078,196) ordinary
shares in issue during the period.
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The fully diluted loss per share for 2001 and 2002 are not shown because the potential ordinary
shares would decrease the loss per share and would be regarded as anti-dilutive.

The comparative amount of the loss per share has been adjusted for the effect of the rights issue of
3,139,294,672 shares of the Company in December 2001.

6. EBITDA
EBITDA represents earnings before interest expenses, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, intangible
assets and goodwill written off, provision for diminution in value of investment securities, unrealised
holding loss on other investments and the Group’s share of results of associates.

7. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the period, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment for an amount of approximately
HK$20.7 million (31 December 2001: HK$159.2 million) and the disposal was approximately
HK$6.5 million (31 December 2001: HK$5 million).

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2002 2001

(Unaudited) (Aundited)

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables 33,909 37,943
Other receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other debtors 10,588 16,287

44,497 54,230

The Group’s credit terms on credit sales mainly range from 30 days to 90 days. Included in trade
and other receivables are trade debtors (net of provision for bad and doubtful debts) with the
following ageing analysis.

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2002 2001

(Unaudited) (Audited)

HK3'000 HK$’000

Current 29,255 29,048
1 to 3 months 3,753 5,922
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 901 2,973
33,909 37,943
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9.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2002 2001
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables ‘ 42,656 42,041
Other payables

Accrued charges and other creditors 35,704 56,515
78,360 98,556

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing analysis.
As at ] As at
30 June 31 December
2002 2001
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current 16,210 12,617
1 to 3 months 9,993 16,580
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 16,453 12,844
42,656 42,041

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

— 64 -

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

5. PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED ADJUSTED CONSOLIDATED NET
TANGIBLE ASSETS OF THE GROUP

Set out below is the pro forma unaudited consolidated net tangible assets of the Group
based on the audited consolidated net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2001
adjusted to reflect the effect of the Rights Issue assuming that 235,447,100 Rights
Shares are issued.

HK$’000

Anudited consolidated net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2001 357,310
Unaudited loss attributable to the Shareholders

for the six months ended 30 June 2002 (115,328)
Movements in reserves (482)
Consolidated net tangible assets

of the Group immediately before the Rights Issue 241,500
Est‘ima‘ted net proceeds of the Rights Issue 25,750
Pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated

net tangible assets of the Group immediately

after the Rights Issue 267,250

Pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated
net tangible assets value per New Share
immediately before the Rights Issue (Note 1) HK$1.03

Pro forma unaudited adjusted consolidated
net tangible assets value per New Share
immediately following the Rights Issue (Note 2) HK$0.57

Notes:
€8] Based on the total number of 235,447,100 New Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date.
) Based on the 470,894,200 New Shares which comprise 235,447,100 New Shares in issue and

235,447,100 Rights Shares to be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue (assuming that no Share
Options are duly exercised before the Record Date).
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INDEBTEDNESS

At the close of business on 31 August 2002, being the latest practicable date for the
purpose of this indebtedness statement prior to the printing of this prospectus, the
Group had outstanding obligations under finance leases of approximately HK$9 million.
In addition, the Group has pledged various fixed deposits of approximately HK$8 million
to banks to secure bank guarantee issued to telecommunication carriers.

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Group did not have at the
close of business on 31 August 2002 any outstanding mortgages, charges, debentures or
other loan capital, bank loans and overdrafts or other similar indebtedness, liabilities
under acceptable credits, obligations under hire purchase contracts or finance leases,
guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

For the purpose of the above indebtedness statement, foreign currency amounts have
been translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange prevailing at the close
of business on 31 August 2002.

MATERIAL CHANGES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances or
events that may give rise to a material change in the financial or trading condition or
prospects of the Group since 31 December 2001 (the date to which the latest published
audited financial statements of the Group were made up).

WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors are of the opinion that in the absence of unforeseeable circumstances and
after taking into account the net proceeds for the Rights Issue, the Group’s internal
resources and available borrowing facilities, the Group has sufficient working capital
for its present requirements.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
(a) Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of the Directors (including their
respective spouses, infant children, related trusts and companies controlled by them) in
the securities of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of the
SDI Ordinance) which require notification pursuant to section 28 of the SDI Ordinance
(including interests which any such Director is taken or deemed to have under section
31 of, or Part I of the Schedule to, the SDI Ordinance) or pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total

Director Interests Interests Interests Interests Interests

Mr. Siemens 1,435,000 - 25,676,475 - 25,676,475

Share Options New Shares New Shares
(Note 4) (Note 1) and 1,435,000
Share Options
Mr. Hicks 1,159,957 - 9,341,875 - 10,501,832
New Shares New Shares New Shares
(Note 2)
Mr. Saran 170,600 - 9,176,875 - 9,347,475
New Shares New Shares New Shares
(Note 3)

Mr. Shane 5,000 - - - 5,000
Frederick New Shares New Shares
Weir

Mr. Derrick 1,925,925 - - - 1,925,925
Francis Share Options Share Options
Bulawa (Note 4)

Mr. Lim 515,000 - - - 515,000
Shyang Share Options Share Options
Guey (Note 4)

Notes.

1. 1,200,000 New Shares are beneficially owned by Siemens Enterprises Limited, and

24,476,475 New Shares are beneficially owned by Goldstone Trading Limited, both of

which are controlled by Mr. Siemens.

2. 9,341,875 New Shares are beneficially owned by Great Wall Holdings Limited, a company
controlled by Mr. Hicks.

3. 9,176,875 New Shares are beneficially owned by Future (Holdings) Limited, a company
controlled by Mr. Saran.

4. The Share Options were granted under the Company’s employee share option scheme adopted
on 25 October 1999.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors
had any interest in any equity or debt securities of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to section 28 of the SDI
Ordinance (including interests which he was taken or deemed to have under section 31
of, or Part I of the Schedule to, the SDI Ordinance) or which were required, pursuant to
section 29 of the SDI Ordinance, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, except for Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr.
Hicks each beneficially owned 1/3 of the shareholding interest of Interventure, none of
the Directors had any interest in the securities of the Underwriter.

None of the Directors had any interest, direct or indirect, in any assets which
have been acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group since 31
December 2001 (being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the
Company were made up) or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to
any member of the Group.

None of the Directors is materially interested in any contract or arrangement
subsisting at the Latest Practicable Date which has been entered into by the Underwriter
or which is significant in relation to the business of the Group.

None of the Directors have entered, or are proposing to enter, into any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated companies which is
not expiring or determinable by the Group within twelve months without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), or which has been entered into or
amended within six months before the date of the Announcement.

No benefit (other than statutory compensation) will be given to any Director as
compensation for loss of office in any member of the Group or otherwise in connection
with the Rights Issue.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there was no agreement or arrangement between
any Director and any other person which is conditional on or dependent upon the
outcome of the Rights Issue or otherwise connected with the Rights Issue.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there was no agreement, arrangement or understanding
(including any compensation arrangement) exists between Interventure or any person acting in
concert with it and any of the Directors, recent Directors, Shareholders or recent Shareholders
having any connection with or dependence upon the Rights Issue.

— 68 -




APPENDIX II GENERAL INFORMATION

(b) The Company and its subsidiaries

None of the subsidiaries of the Company, nor pension funds of the Company or
of a subsidiary of the Company, nor any fund managed on a discretionary basis by any
fund manager connected with the Company had any interest in the securities of the
Company as at the Latest Practicable Date.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
had any interest in the securities of the Underwriter.

(¢) Directors of the Underwriter

The details of the securities of the Company owned by the directors of the
Underwriter, namely, Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr. Hicks (including their spouses,
infant children, related trusts and companies controlled by them) are disclosed in section
(a) above.

(d) The Underwriter

Except Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr. Hicks, neither the Underwriter nor the
parties acting in concert with it had any interest in the securities of the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there was no agreement, arrangement or
understanding between the Underwriter and other persons that the Rights Shares to be
acquired by the Underwriter under the Underwriting Agreement will be transferred to
that person.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there was no agreement, arrangement or
understanding (including any compensation arrangement) between the Underwriter or
parties acting in concert with it and any of the Directors, recent Directors, Shareholders
or recent Shareholders having any connection with or dependence upon the Rights
Issue.

(e) QOthers
As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of Quam Capital Limited and Moores
Rowland had any interest in the securities of the Company or any shareholding in any

member of the Group or had the right to subscribe for or to nominate persons to
subscribe for securities in any member of the Group. '
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the following Shareholder had an interest in ten per

cent or more of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
substantial Shareholder maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI
Ordinance:

Percentage of the

Number of total issued

Name of Shareholder New Shares held ordinary share capital

Mr. Siemens 25,676,475 1091%
(Note)

Note: 1,200,000 New Shares are beneficially owned by Siemens Enterprises Limited and 24,476,475 New
Shares are beneficially owned by Goldstone Trading Limited, both of which are controlled by Mr.
Siemens.

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, there are no other

persons (other than a director or chief executive of the Company) who, as at the Latest
Practicable Date were, directly or indirectly, beneficially interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Siemens, 57, Chairman, joined the Group in January 2000. Mr. Siemens is a
founding member, Co-Chairman and Executive Director of SUNDAY Communications
Limited. Mr. Siemens is also the Chairman and a founding member of Distacom
Communications Limited. He has been involved in the telecommunications industry for
almost 30 years. Born and raised in Canada, Mr. Siemens was trained as a Chartered
Accountant and came to Hong Kong in 1979. In 1984, he was involved in the
establishment of Hutchison Telephone Company Limited with Hutchison Whampoa and
Motorola. Mr. Siemens, as Group Managing Director of Hutchison Telecommunications
Limited, was also involved in the establishment of other well-known companies including
AsiaSat, STAR TV and Metro Radio and Hutchison’s move into the European wireless
business with “Orange”, as well as Hutchison’s European telecom strategy.

Mr. Saran, 51, was appointed as Deputy Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company in December 2001. Actively involved in top-level management and the strategic
development of the Company, Mr. Saran is also an Executive Director of SUNDAY
Communications Limited and Distacom Communications Limited. Mr. Saran was
formerly with Hutchison Telecommunications in Hong Kong responsible for the
development and execution of new business in the United Kingdom, Thailand, Malaysia,
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India, Taiwan and China. Mr. Saran has nearly 20 years of experience in the
telecommunications industry. He received his B. Tech degree from the Indian Institute
of Technology at Kanpur in 1973 and his MBA from Syracuse University in 1977.

Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa, 38, joined the Group in September 1999 as Chief
Executive Officer and was appointed in October 1999 as Executive Director. As CEO
of the Company, Mr. Bulawa oversees the development and execution of the Group’s
unique vision for convergent services. He is also the Group’s chief strategist and his
responsibilities include paying personal attention to investor relations and the Group’s
worldwide services businesses. Mr. Bulawa was among the key founders of STAR TV
and also served as Chief Cperating Officer for the US based UNIFI Communications
where he worked extensively in the Asian satellite, data and telecommunications sectors.
He has more than 16 years of entrepreneurial and communications experience in the
United States and Asia. Mr. Bulawa received his Bachelor of Science degree in Electronic
Engineering Technology from the DeVry Institute of Technology in the United States.

Mr. Lim Shyang Guey, 43, was appointed as Executive Director and Vice-
President, Corporate Development of the Company in October 1999. Mr. Lim is
responsible for executing the Group’s corporate strategy and overseeing major shareholder
and investor issues. He also plays an active role as Executive Director on the Company’s
Board of Directors and was one of the core creators of the Group’s unique business
vision. He has more than 13 years of experience in telecommunications and information
technology in various countries including New Zealand, Russia, Malaysia and Singapore.
Mr. Lim holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree and a Master of Engineering degree,
both from the University of Auckland in New Zealand.

The business address for each of the Executive Directors is Room 4101-5,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Nomn-executive Director

Mr. Hicks, 41, was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company in
December 2001. Mr. Hicks is the Group Managing Director of SUNDAY
Communications Limited. He has been a partner of Distacom Communications Limited
since 1994 and currently serves as an Executive Director and the Distacom group’s
Chief Technology Officer. Prior to joining Distacom, Mr. Hicks was with Hutchison
Telecom, where he was responsible for technical operations in Hong Kong and actively
involved in new business development in Asia and Europe. Mr. Hicks, a Canadian,
‘began his career with Motorola Inc. in the United States. He received his B.S.E.E.
degree from Michigan Technological University in 1983 and an M.B.A. from the
International Management Institute in Geneva, Switzerland in 1987. The business address
of Mr. Hicks is 16/F East, Warwick House, TaiKoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Shane Frederick Weir, 48, was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2001. Mr. Weir is a consultant of Weir & Associates,
Solicitors & Notaries. Born and educated in Canada, Mr. Weir’s practice as solicitor
concentrates on corporate commercial tax and securities matters. He has practiced in
Hong Kong since 1985 and for several years was employed in Hong Kong as an associate
with Phillips & Vineberg, one of the oldest and most respected commercial law firms in
North America. Mr. Weir qualified as a solicitor, barrister, and notary public in Canada
in 1978 and was admitted as a solicitor in the United Kingdom as well as in Hong Kong
in 1992, The business address of Mr. Weir is 5th Floor, Landmark East, 12 Ice House
Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Mr. Matthew Brian Rosenberg, 31, was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2001. Mr. Rosenberg is currently the Vice-President
of International Sales & Operations for Forgent Networks, Inc. (formerly known as
Global Scheduling Solutions (“GSS”)). He comes to GSS with a diverse background
spanning over 9 years in Internet & telecom technology, revenue driven channel
management and strategic business planning. His international management experience
spans both Asia, Australia and Europe, abilities in several languages, and success in
developing business models and revenues in both regions of the world. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Japanese and Spanish from the University of Amherst, Massachusetts.
The business address of Mr. Rosenberg is Flat 36, Sailmakers Ct., William Morris Way,
Fulham, London SW6 2UX, United Kingdom.

LEGAL ADVISERS, AUDITORS, SHARE REGISTRARS AND PRINCIPAL
BANKERS OF THE COMPANY ’

Registered Office Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
Head office and principal Room 4101-5, Hopewell Centre
place of business 183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai
Hong Kong

Mr. Derrick Francis Bulawa
Room 4101-5, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Authorised representatives

Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela
24th Floor, Entertainment Building
30 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong
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Legal advisers

Auditors

Principal share registrars and
transfer office in Bermuda

Branch share registrars and
transfer office in Hong Kong

Principal bankers

As to Hong Kong law:

Angela Wang & Co.

24th Floor, Entertainment Building
30 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

As to Bermuda law:
Conyers, Dili & Pearman
2901 One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Moores Rowiand

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
34th Floor

The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda)
Limited (formerly known as Butterfield
Corporate Services Limited)

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

Secretaries Limited

5th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

1 Queen’s Road

Central

Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Central, Hong Kong
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5. EXPENSES

The expenses in connection with the Rights Issue, including the financial advisory fee,
underwriting commission, printing, registration, translation, legal and accounting charges are
estimated to amount to approximately HK$2.5 million and are payable by the Company.

6. LITIGATION

e-Force Limited (“e-Force”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a service
agreement with a supplier in November 2000 regarding the enhancement of a service platform
for the telecommunication business of the Group. The Group has disagreed with the supplier
over the performance and acceptance of certain products delivered and services rendered.
Hence, e-Force has not yet settled the final fee of US$550,000 (approximately HK$4,279,000)
which is the amount involved in the dispute and which is contracted to become due and
payable when e-Force is satisfied with such products and services. Notwithstanding negotiations
with the supplier are still ongoing, the supplier’s legal advisers have issued a request for
payment stating that legal action will be commenced if settlement is not made by 22 November
2002. The Group will seek further negotiations with the supplier to settle the dispute.

The Directors are of the opinion that the possible litigation from the supplier will not
have any impact on the operations and no material impact on the financial condition of the
Group.

Save as disclosed above, no member of the Group is engaged in any litigation or claim
of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

7. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The contracts which have been entered into by members of the Group within two years
preceding the Latest Practicable Date, which are not in the ordinary course of business and
which are or may be material are as follows:

(a)  the Underwriting Agreement, of which the maximum commission to be paid by
the Company to the Underwriter will be approximately HK$468,010; and

(b) the underwriting agreement dated 4 October 2001 entered into between the
Company and Quam Securities Company Limited relating to the underwriting of
a rights issue. An underwriting commission of HK$4,312,773.08 was paid by the
Company to Quam Securities Company Limited.
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8. GENERAL

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
at Room 4101-5, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The registered office of the Company is at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The branch share registrars and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong is
Secretaries Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The secretary of the Company is Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela, LLB (Hons).

The English text of this document shall prevail over the Chinese text for the
purpose of interpretation.

9. DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES IN HONG
KONG AND BERMUDA

Copies of the Rights Issue Documents have been registered with the Companies Registry
in Hong Kong as required by Section 342C of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Copies of the Rights Issue Documents have been filed with the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda as required by the Companies Act 1581 of Bermuda.

16. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business
hours on weekdays (except Saturdays and public holidays) at Room 3805, Tower II, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong from the date of this prospectus up to and including 13
December 2002:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company;

the annual reports of the Company for the two years ended 31 December 2000
and 31 December 2001;

the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2002;

the material contracts referred to under the section headed “Material Contracts”
in this appendix;

the irrevocable undertakings from Mr. Siemens, Mr. Saran and Mr. Hicks;

the circular of the Company relating to the Rights Issue dated 28 QOctober 2002;
and

this prospectus.
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Fi#T  TEEZ  TELT  TET  TET  TER

gy
M E 131,187 9405 140,392 105,078 21,845 126,923
BEER (62,708) (8477)  (71,185)  (84,394)  (21,677) (106,071)
R EE
gk b - - - {105.718) (71,238)  (112.956)
(62,708) (8.477)  (71,185) (190,112)  (28.913) (219,027
BE A (770) (105)
HiBg

WARHEE (7.816) (21,224)
BREMEY _

IRBRER (8,675) (177,283)
BEREEHERE (26,882) (118,945)
BEBEEATNESR - (501)
ERELEEFHE (115,328) (537,085)
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By &% — FEE2UBER

HHRGEEHEERER

BEAA=1HIEXEA

—EBCF g

(REBE®Z) (REE®R)

F T F ¥ T

BEHB RS REFE (75,701) (136,324)
BREEHFREBENAZEHES (GY) HABRE (522) 3,642
B & Ei 5 ' — _
BEXH2RERE BHE (18,769) (89,978)
BERzREREZHE (94,992) (222,660)
BMEZHE (FH / HAAEHE (6,028) 7,501
He¢RBRESEEEH D (101,020) (215,159)
R—A—HBZHEEekH£SHEEB 166,193 412,988
RARB=Z1+HZERERELEEER 65,173 197,829
ReRBeEEEB ZEBRIN
He RBITHER 33,120 85,291
[WAE A i 7,714 5,000
Hibfr & 24,339 107,538

65,173 197,829

- 60 -




i & —

FZREBzHBEEN

GEEE SR 3 1 E
EFx H48KE
Bx RORE ERGEHR EREE ZHRE ZBHEE ot
(REER) (REEH) (AEBR) KEEHR) (REBH) (REEH) (REER)

F#TT T#ET F#T Fi#T F# T F#TT F#T
R_ZFE—-F—-A—-H 40,879 1,122,734 (388) 6 (69,333)  (252,280) 841,616
BIARMBZ®E 62,786 70,638 - - - - 133,424
BORGZEX - (6,131) - - - - (6,131)
SEE NS AR
ZERES - - 381 - - - 381
WEGARENZHS - - - - 69,335 - 69,335
BHEGRERRHE - - - - - (681,315)  (681,315)
RZIZE—4F
+-A=+—H 103,665 1,187,241 %) 6 - (933,595) 357,310
BaRHZHAX - (489) - - - - (489)
REE BN A
ZERER - - - - - 7
RAELEEREHE - - - - - (115328)  (115,328)
RZEZ_EXA=Z+H 103,665 1,186,752 - 6 - (1,048,923) 241,500
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B &% — XEBz2HBER
BHGEEERER
—BEC-F —EBE-—F
v +=A
=+A =+-~8
(RBEZ) (BER)
5t &% F# T F# T
BERAR
RBEE
Y- B kRE 7 211,511 215,428
i /N K 4,838 4,838
BEBE 4,552 31,434
220,901 251,700
REBEE
Hih & & 24,339 47,737
E 5 L H AR R IE 8 44,497 54,230
EEHEXK 7,714 7,107
HekBHEe%EHEEB 33,120 111,349
109,670 220,423
RBEE
g5 R H A AT K IE 9 78,360 98,556
B B B A YE 2 BN HE 3 0 9,694 11,372
88,054 109,928
REBEERE 21,616 110,495
BEERRSHERS 242,517 362,195
RE&E
B & A 1,017 4,885
LPERREER — —
BEERE 241,500 357,310
BERFE
B AT A A 103,665 103,665
ft 8 137,835 253,645
241,500 357,310
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By 8% —

g

B MK EHR

BE_SZ-FAAZHALABAZKABRERREVBES

TXAMBEAEEBE _FT _EAA=ZTFTHERBAZREELESF

LEE
FRARSRER

-
& A

EF
HA WA

o1 85 AL
XBEBATHHERAX
BERATH B X

I8 K

REFRA

BB A

B R E K

EH R ERERE
FEHMBREZARAZEHEBER
FE A6 B 8 8 T SRR

BREBEMEERKER
BLEA
BRBEEEREEE
D BUBORHE &
BRREGBEFE
BRES

HAE

i

EBITDA

Ht

BEANAZTHLEREA

—BE8_F -
(REBER) (RBE%)
F# T F T
140,592 126,923
(102,909) (101,170)
37,683 25,753
1,261 3,747
38,944 29,500
(12,736) (11,296)
(3,767) (20,688)
(78.,756) (108,469)
(22,686) (16,342)
(79,001) (127,295)
(770) (105)

— (112,956)
(26,882) (118,945)
(8,675) (177,283)
— (501)
(115,328) (537,085)
(115,328) (537,085)
(115,328) (537,085)
(2.45)1l (29.89)1ll
AiEH AN
(56,315) (110,953)

BE_ZZ—FANA=ZFTHBLEABARZEZ_FAA=ZTHE EABEAALFAILES REM

BE > MEEMELEER -




ZEEz2UBER

BEE-Z2RCF+-A=+—-HL=EE

TAE &M ®"a
TF#TT F T F T
=%
HINEHE 67,603 32,522 100,125
b= 8
BEEE (78,681) (10,567) (89,248)
B ' R A (140)
HiZBERARKI 103,397
BREZBHFBERS (8,904)
JE £ BBt 25 O I SR AR (1,110)
BRFLRT R H R A 3,995
BIE (739)
BB ESEERER 3,256
SR EER (1,954)
BT RE A 5 RIS R 1302
HeEp
SEEE 786,027 141,260 927,287
BN TR 12,687
—a 074
B 47,886 97,253
33, HBRF

ETHUREFEENR B URAEGEEEZBHITK -
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FEB2UBER

(b)

BB

BE_ZBZT-F+-A=+—-BULEFE

TAME it E M #ne
F T F#HIL F#TT
WA
HIMNHE 150,319 113,577 263,896
Bl
B R (105,181) (96,929) (202,110)
ML E R (79,102) (35,693) (114,795)
(184,283) (132,622) (316,905)
g N (1,216)
HihBERARMX (50,655)
BERORE REHEIE (240,476)
BEBHBHEBESE (72,021)
LB EANRIEE (752)
B B BT 4B R A (682,025)
DEBRERER 710
REBILEBRPHE (681,315)
Higs
SEEE 313,551 153,734 467,285
s TR 4,838

AR X
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Bz h%E R

BZE_S82F+-A=+—-HLEE

HiEs
BAHEX
TEREE
EFEFASHX
(378 R#EHER SN

BE
TERE
BENEER
RFHBEREE
)R 5 B B

8
TEAE
RTHEAMRE

TRER
EMEK B %
F#ET TFHT

134,957 3,276
8,760 345

1,142 —

Hi B )
F#IT FHETLT THET

5,77%
2,266

198,575 2,260

340,701 7,651
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17,070 (303) 217,602
12,687

993,148

(283,463)

939,974

31,253 (283,766) 95,839
2,519

_ 98,358
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B & —

x

SEEzHBEH

BE-SS-F1+=-BA=+—-RHLEE

Hip &

EAHXZ

I8 R

ITEFREMX
(I8 KBRS PR SN

BE
THEE
BEAFER
RFHAEEE
BRI S 88

=Y
THRE
RFAEAR

BEZ-_28BF+-A=+—HLEE

ERE
B EHE

E g5
LEER

RN A

AMBERARRBX
EHEREBERE
LR N -GNCE ¥

BRBLAT A8 B F A
B

PR B2 48 SE T i A
D E R

Ji 3R 15 gk 1R AR

EXER
BRE® AR 3% Hft HH sy
T#x T#ET TFET TFHET TET
158,635 3,076 1,234
30,725 1,286 2,076
7,678 — 271
268,899 8,134 9,715 (382) 286,366
4,838
761,790
(580,871)
472,123
618,010 34,629 39,858 (581,253) 111,244
3,569
114,813
EREE
B % FR 3% Hity Gy
T# T T#T F#T F#TT
63,740 1,284 35,101 100,125
(76,864) (9.777) (2.607) (89,248)
(140)
103,397
(8,904)
(1,110)
3,995
(739)
3,256
(1,954)
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2RBaER

By & —

31, BEAXXS
E > REEHSUNDAY Communications Limited ([ SUNDAYJ) Z [ /B 4 &) Mandarin
Communications Limited % 1 B F B IR H & F 6,563,000 70 (ZEZEF © 4,471,000%
JG) ° Richard John Siemens’C 4 - Kuldeep Saran%t 4 & William Bruce Hicks7E4E & A8 4
& XSUNDAYZ E & -

32. oRER
AEFALEHAEFRITERRBES 2 ZHFUT ¢
(a) HEBHD

RE-QC-F+-A=t-ALEE

TREETRE
BAEE BR 7% 2 =e
F T F#IT F#E T F#ET
)2
HANEE 224,162 34,912 4,822 263,896
451
REEHA (163,391) (22,612) (16,107) (202,110)
ELEEREEMS (105,628) (2,508) (6,659)  (114,795)
(269,019) (25,120) (22,766)  (316,905)
Rl & A (1,216)
EMBERARMEX (50,655)
REHEMEEZ REBRER (240,476)
BHUERERE (72,021)
i IR /NI % (752)
REELHER (682,025)
D ER R R 710
BREELERBHE __(681,315)
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FEEz2MBER

28.

29.

30.

FARESEZIW
ERTRER
RORETHHEBEAE PBRARES
F T F I F BT
M_EEEHE—-HF—H 250,596 - 12,441
MERESHEAGEE) 742,046 (212) -
B ST & T HE A L - 794 -
A RS & F - — 1,954
HEWBAA - - (14,276)
RBEER 161,291 - -
W _EEFFE+__FE=+—8H 1,153,933 582 119
BEBRESHEA L) 127,293 (8,926) 591
FEHELTHEAEK — 24,601 -
AEEEILER - - (710)
RoEE—E+-A=+-8 1,281,226 16,257 -
RedaRn

REER  BEATHEBZ I EEFEEHIAIMZRERBABMOT

F=EE LN
—R9-F “OURF CZQF-F Z2%8F
T# T F#T T#T TF#TT

REMEERY
—ER 10,361 4,515 651 1,284
BOEBERE
(BHEERWMEER) 4,144 1,784 - 31
14,505 6,299 651 1,315
FEEHRE

REREE > RBEZBERARME (BB Z2EEFH0TF

FRE

—B838-—-F —BEBEeF

FH#IT F T

GHBERRITHE 2,691 2,187
BIEREGE (88,833) (28,421)
(86,142) (26,234)

ERBEERANETNTRARMER  WBEZEEHBEEWRM LIRSS Kk
FZBEBERRHBERERNER -
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M & — FEBZ2UBER
EHMEKBEHBARAZREARSSEEERNBESFNOT ¢
—B8-F C—BE82E
F T F#TT
HeRE 2,000 5,000
Frh BB EERERES (397) (2,219)
DESEXIMZEEZERA - 249
EEVUEMBARIZRERRCEEERRLESR 1,603 3,030
27. HENBLT
—BE—F —RREBF
F T F T
FHEZEEZEME
Y- BB NEEE - 10,219
RERE - 5,757
"rE - 2,016
HHE 15,000 —
B 5 RHE MR KIE - 10,733
RERBE&EHER - 5,068
H5REMEMNKE — (12,932)
FE - (616)
DB RS - (14,276)
E 5 {5 - (1,117)
HitERRE — 1,087
ZEREZHEE - 560
15,000 6,479
HEMBLARZ ISR — 23,521
15,000 30,000
HEMBARAZHESRBESEHEEHRA (L) BHEM M
88— @ CZRBEIE
FH#T Fi#T
B&NE 15,000 -
FHEZHERBITEE - (5,068)
FBEHEHBARZEHSER
AEZHEEARACRH) B4 15,000 (5,068)
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M & — ZEB 2K EHR
24. BB (BB, BANACEEE - HSAUTECRY
—88%—F —BeBE
F#T Fi#T
BERT (R A (682,025) 3,995
FE WA (4,216) (28,795)
FELPH/EWA - (66)
HEHEABZHE 1,216 140
e 32,134 10,508
HEYE - - BERZEZER 1,471 152
EREERFEME 114,795 -
REREGREZ REREBR 240,476 -
BEREEEEE 72,021 2,904
R /N 752 1,110
RAREEE - 1,000
FER 27,237 42
RIBHE 6,170 1,100
HERMBZEZER 3,807 -
EERBARZWRE - (23,521)
HEEAEMEZWH - (76,051)
HEETERE 2,471 1,163
BEYEEY
HEYE 3,734 (3,734)
#E 978 (2,399)
Z 5 B H AR K E (13,185) (70,275)
5 R HMESHKE 491 90,114
N o 381 -
REXR>2ESHLEHR (191,292) (86,613)
25, FEHBL2XR
FEBRBEBRRETIVEHERHE  MRTHANT EEEE 524,601,000 7%
(ZHBFBEE : 794,0008 70) -
26. WEHBALA
—RE-F —REERF
F# T FH#IT
Frif g RESE:
W - WA RRE - 303
5 K B fh i FIE 759 808
ReErhHAS%EEEE 397 2,219
B 5 R E AT IE (408) (5,203)
748 (1,873)
RS 1,252 7,122
2,000 5,249
TR
HE 2,000 5,000
HEAZ EHENR - 249
2,000 5,249
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23.

ITHBEEZITEEEN RS ERREE_EFE 2 — A D03320E#HEHHA
% o

b FER G ARXAETHELAALER _FZ-FEA - T+HE BT 2 RLRRERR
ARG LR RAEZ RN - RRIERBERES B ((HEBARFH]) - #
B BARAETEERFENABEAR MAZEWRBLARAZESR) REME LA
HoMERTRBFBRALEADBERMBLOR ZBE - BRALIK - HE
AR 35 BT B 4 B R AT A e B AR

i

FRE

HR_EEEFE~F—H
BITR G
BT M Z X
B 2 E R R

S G SN I A R
ZERE®R
WHEMB A REE
ZHE

FiR B A 8 1) 15 R

REETEF
+ZR=t—d
TG
BIMHZ WX
S5 51 4 24 A B
2 ERER
G AR B B
Bk 2 B
R A 5 209 4

R-®B-%
+ZA=+-&

NN

L
BT
BTR Z P

R A

RoFBEE
TZA=Z+—08
BT

RITRG2ZHE
A SRR 5 99 4

R-Bp®-—-F
+=R=+-8

BXRE RHUBF KEKRE
BROBE BAHER R RE ZHE RiER |E
T#T F#ET TH#IT THET THETL T#ExT THEX

227,407 1,117 6  (1,087) (62,761) (253,582) (88,900)
912,221 - - - - - 912,221
(16,894) ~ - - - T = (16,894)
- 1,1 - 1,087 560 - 530
- (388) - - - - (388)
- - - - (7.134) - (7134

- 1,302 1,302

1,122,734 (388) 6 - (69,335) (252,280) 800,737
70,638 - - - - - 70,638
(6,131) - - - - - (6,131)

— 381 — — - - 381
- - - - 69,335 - 69,335

- - - - — (681,315) (681,315)

1,187,241 (7) 6 — — (933,595) 253,645
227,407 - 6 . - — (252,495) (25,082)
912,221 - - - - ~ 912,221
(16,894) - - - - - (16,894

- - - - - 31,713 31,713

1,122,734 - 6 - — (220,782) 901,958
70,638 - - - - - 70,638
(6,131) - - - - - (6,131)

—  (459,819) (459,819)

1,187,241 — 6 — —  (680,601) 506,646

RoFF-HE+_A=Z+—H > EBEIAIHEIRZFHEE CZETE 8 -
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AEEHBER

22.

ARFIRBERELCAERFARZIARAMUZHEE - RAEMEREH > FMAALA
RARERERDRTEAEANRBGHEEAZESSIH BT EERAEFERER
G  REMESEEAEDOECRMERATHRIARINEHMZRAETE ;5 (i)
ENLERFAEEEAZAZEZRGE > RG)RTRE > ZHBMZELRK -

8RR

(a)

REAXNTR—ANNETAZTHEENET ZREAFI ARG L ERZERHER
BB ((HERESH]) - ARAZESRTHREFZAERER (OBEALTHNT
EFBAURBELAFTRGZHERE - TR M EREST RERETH
BRRGEFRTHETE - AL AROEEREAN T2 RABE G ESEE
Fo WATBERAARRGEREEREEN BN AMEES B ERZHZFY
BHEZRE AN RMEE DEEELHE) -

RIFZ-FE+ZAZ+—8 > AQARBRRE DR 2 BARHER S RT
FZEEEEEOT

HRERE
P TIvE:3
g@8g -°%-F +=5
RE B TER ke 4 -B-R FABY EFRTE FHi% =Z+-B
#T
- AhNE CEZEFELAZLTEEE 0.14 42,111,235 - - - 42111235
+AZ+HH ZEEAEFAZTHNA
—AAAE ZEFEES-RTREE 0.16 6,045,000 - (8.000) (1.212,000) 4,825,000
+—A+RE ZEEAFETAZYEA
—LALRE ZEFEETIAZTZIRE 0.20 3.950.000 - - - 3,950,000
+ZAZ+ZH  ZEZAE+HAZ+ER
ZZZZ%E “EF-H£—fZHE 0.23 3,025,000 - - - 3.025.000
—AZ=8 ZZZNETRTNE )
ZERRE IEFFFE-AFTEBEE 0.23 28,700,000 B - = 28,700,000
—AZ+mH ZEFEAFETAZITEE
ZEERE ZEEFE_RZT-HE 0.23 7,635,000 - - (135,000) 7,500,000
—AZ+mE ZEBRAFTAZTEEA
ZEREE ZRZEFZA-HE 0.23 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
—-AZ+7H ZEENETAZTNE
ZEREE ZEEZFWAZAE 0.76 19,000,000 - - ~ 19,000,000
ZAZH ZEERETAZTOA
ZBRLE ZER-EZAZHE 0.76 3,650.000 - - (500,000) 3,150,000
ZRzZH ZZENETAZAMEA
ZRRRE CEF-EEAZLARE 0.33 5.975.000 - - (1.060.000) 4,915,000
BAZ+AH ZEEAETAZYHA
Z2ZZE ZER-FRA-HE 0.34 250,000 - - (250.000) -
AH—H ZZEAETAZTHER
up 3343 ZRE-FEARBREE 0.23 1,000.000 - - (450.000)  550.000
ARNE ZREAEHACZAEA
ZIZRE Z2Z-E+RZ+ERE 0.12 10,372,274 - - (440,000) 9,932,274
+A-+EH ZEFNETAZTNE
ZER-E IRZ-FEATABE 0.08 - 200,000 - - 200,000
EATAH ZEFZEMA—H
134,213,509 200,000 (8,000)  {4.047.000) 130.358,509
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M 4% — FEE>HBER
BB —EBBEF
RHEEHE k] ROHE &8
CRTREERSE F#ET F T
EREEIB T EBER
w—H—H 9,680,000 9,680 170,970,968 170,971
SRR R — —  (161,290,968) (161,291)
w+—_HA=+—H 9,680,000 9,680 9,680,000 9,680
FREH.02ET THEEE
w—H—H 1,559,959,336 31,199 1,159,449,380 23,189
B A7 L4 AL 3,139,294,672 62,786 230,000,000 4,600
EERRLE - - 161,290,968 3,226
T RS A R 8,000 — 9,218,988 184
wt+—-BE=+—8H 4,699,262,008 93,985 1,559,959,336 31,199
&t 103,665 40,879
(a) MIZEE—-E+ A+ ZHEF2EEFIAREGERE-—ELERSZE > %
3,000,000,000 B B EHHONRETZLER AL AR ERRBREEMNE
120,000,000k JC -
(by RIEZ—FUAE  THEEBREZRELRALTSOEEREE QBT EEE  ES
3,9208 7T ©
RIEE—E+ZF - AARBEEMERETI139,24,6NKREREFEB T HLTE
Btz EELABRE —BREATERTERSMAMEROREHFE —RTHBRRE
SERR TR WA AR BT EAERR0.04258 0 ([HBEEE]) - HERETEXR
EREMEFALEEZHINEEERES - ’
FREBTZHEAFEERESFTEHYEALNBZHALERELERSEAM -
(c) MBEALFRZAAMAEBERBTEHZEE  BERBEEATEZTIEMELR

ARAFBERFERR  BEASREEIRTZEERTRAR -RERETHE.02ET
LER - BERTREFEZTIEMB LS

i) A EEERFAEAFEL —BEI PR SERMBRELHEIOREZ
HHE; =k

(i) ARAXAGETMBETEFMMZPHEERRPRAIOREZBEH ; &

Gii) EFGEEENELSRSEAZHMES > wEMEFNEANZEPIIB30RBZA
£ g

A BEEER-ANAEFTZA+AERR - BERUREBAE_EEHZREE—
HEHA=ZAH > BMZALHEED > AT —MEEXH -
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g

BN #8
1E3f A
HiE3mABLR12@A

20. HMIHHEERE

ARTIMHEREHEEERRE

—ER
1EZ B 2E R
REMEEA
HEREZHE

21, BERORE

EERE

SREEIBTZELERK
m—A—HB Xk
+-RA=+—8H

EHREMEMFIECERMESTIE > ARRRISFTOT

A%
—ge-5 —TeeF
T T
12,617 7,244
16,580 8,525
12,844 2,014
42,041 17,783
ARE
REBSNRZRE

REHRSIX
IBE-F -—22E€F
F# T Ti# T

—BB-F Z22%F
F#T F# T

12,555 617 11,372 582
5,123 - 4,885 -
17,678 617 16,257 582
(1,421) (35) - -
16,257 582 16,257 582
—BEg-—F —2gEHF

BEBHE &8 KBR&eo®E &8

F# o F T

288,929,402 288,929

288,929,402 288,929

BREHEICEBETZLER
B»—A—H
B AR

3,000,000,000 60,000
3,000,000,000 60,000

1,500,000,000 30,000
1,500,000,000 30,000

WA =+—H

6,000,000,000 120,000

3,000,000,000 60,000

a1

408,929
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B & — FEEBZz2HHBESR
16. EZRHEMEREE
TER ELTF
S _CT8EFE ZCT-F ZBEEF
FiE T F#ET FETT FH#TT
BEWE 2 MRE 37,943 36,368 — —
HihlE WA
e BEMNRER
HibBIE®RIE 16,287 37,423 843 14,350
54,230 73,791 843 14,350
AEEEEHEZEEPHIBEWEAE - B RHMBEURECSRERIE S ZE (0
BRBERES > FHER®HSTTWOT
TER
—BE-—f —BEEF
F T FibT
(1 29,048 23,735
1Z£38 A 5,922 10,736
HB3EAEDRIEA 2,973 1,897
37,943 36,363
17. BEAER
NEEH  FEEEAANT S HEHT107,0008 T (ZETETHE | 68,680,000 T) &
3,007,000 70 (ZFEEEE © 68,680,000 7T) FRITMEAER -
18. BERBRESEHESR
TERB b N
B "_TTSFE —SB—F —TBEF
F T F T F T F#EIT
BTHEERLRE 107,349 26,546 90,577 6,677
EHAER 4,000 317,762 - 312,762
111,349 344,308 90,577 319,439
19. EBRHEMENSRIE
TEE FZDT
- “ZTRFHF —ET-F ZEZTEHE
F#ET FH#ET F T F# T
E/ESFHE 42,041 17,783 - —
H i RE T B IE
JEEtE AR H BT RIE 56,515 78,378 2,816 477
FEATI B A A - - 4,521 5,092
FE < B 2 20 R _ - 1,496 - 1,496

98,556 97,657 7,337 7,065




M 8 — FEEZzZUKEEH
13. HBEQA[ER
FER b N
ZEB-F _STCTF B%—F —LBIE
F# T Fib T F T F T
HEEFE - (1,911 (1,257) - -
FE i W36 48 45 B FRIA 6,749 13,944 6,806 9,215
4,838 12,687 6,806 9,215
REBEZHBELAT (2FHEELWTLAE) ZHEFNT ¢
BARY/ BEXTR ERRRERE
BeAREE Sy SERE ZES L FEER
HE H#
CIB (Holdings) Limited EBELER 1,000 7T - 8% REER
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RekBfig%EEER) 26 (1,603)
HEWBAR (BHBFEFEEZ
HeEkBHEEHEER) 27 15,000
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